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Please find enclosed for filing in the referenced matter the original and five copies of the
Application of Pac-West Telecomm, Inc .

Would you please bring this filing to the attention of the appropriate Commission
personnel .

Please contact me if you have any questions regarding this filing . Thank you.

Very truly yours,

NEWMAN, COMLEY & RUTH P.C .



In the Matter of the Application of

Pac-West Telecomm, Inc .

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

for Certificates of Service Authority to Provide
Resold and Facilities-Based Local Exchange
and Interexchange Telecommunications Services
in the State of Missouri and to Classify Those
Services and the Company as Competitive

APPLICATION OF
PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

I . INTRODUCTION

Comes now Pac-West Telecomm, Inc . ("Pac-West" or "Applicant'), by its undersigned

counsel, and hereby files this verified application pursuant to 4 CSR 24-2.060 and 4 CSR 240-

3 .510, and respectfully requests that the Missouri Public Service Commission ("Commission")

issue an order that (a) grants Applicant a Certificate of Authority to provide resold and facilities-

based basic local telecommunications service in portions of the State of Missouri and facilities-

based and resold interexchange telecommunications service throughout the State of Missouri, (b)

grants competitive status to Applicant and (c) waives certain Commission rules and statutory

provisions pursuant to Section 392.420, RSMo 2000.

The State of Missouri has adopted a policy of allowing competition in the local and long

distance telecommunications markets, recognizing that it is in the public interest to develop

effective competition to ensure that all consumers will have access to high quality, low cost, and
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innovative telecommunications services . The Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996 also

seeks to promote competition and reduce regulation in order to secure lower prices and higher

quality telecommunications services for American consumers . Both goals will be promoted by

granting this Application .

The Applicant submits the following information in support of its request.

II .

	

APPLICATION FOR AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
SERVICE

A.

	

Description of the Applicant

1 .

	

Applicant's legal name is Pac-West Telecomm, Inc. Pac-West will not use an

assumed or fictitious name in Missouri . Pac-West is a publicly traded company traded on the

Nasdaq exchange under the symbol "PACW". Pac-West may be reached at its principal place of

business :

directed to :

and

Pac-West Telecomm, Inc .
1776 W. March Lane, Suite 250
Stockton, CA 95207
(800) 722-9378 (Tel)
(209) 926-4444 (Fax)

2.

	

Correspondence or communications pertaining to this Application should be

Mark W. Comley
Newman, Comley & Ruth PC
Monroe Bluff Executive Center
601 Monroe Street, Suite 301
P .O . Box 537
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0537
Tel : (573) 634-2266
Fax: (573) 634-3306
Email : comleym(ancrpc.com

All statutory citations herein are to RSMo. 2000 unless otherwise indicated .



should be directed to :

Richard M. Rindler
Brian McDermott
Swidler Berlin LLP
3000 K Street, N.W ., Suite 300
Washington, D .C . 20007
(202) 424-7500 (Tel)
(202) 424-7645 (Fax)
bmmcdermott@swidlaw.com

3 .

	

Questions concerning the ongoing operations of Pac-West following certification

Lynne Martinez
Director Government Affairs
Pac-West Telecomm, Inc .
1776 W. March Lane, Ste . 250
Stockton, CA 95207
(209) 926.4339 (Tel)
(209) 926.4585 (Fax)
lmartin@pacwest.com

4.

	

Pac-West's registered agent in the State ofMissouri is :

CSC-Lawyers Incorporating Service Company
221 Bolivar Street
Jefferson City, MO 65 101

5.

	

For purposes of consumer inquiries, the contact information will be:

Customer Care Center
4210 Coronado Ave .
Stockton, CA 95204
(877) 626-4325 (Tel)
support@pacwest.com

B. Qualifications

6 .

	

Pac-West is a California corporation formed on September 5, 2000 . A copy of its

incorporation documents are attached hereto as Exhibit A. Pac-West's authority to transact business

as a foreign corporation in Missouri is attached hereto as Exhibit B.



7 .

	

Pac-West is extremely well qualified to provide telecommunications services in

Missouri . Pac-West currently is authorized to provide telecommunications services in Arizona,

California, Colorado, Idaho, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Utah, Washington

and District of Columbia . Pac-West has 25 years of experience in voice telephony and currently

operates one of the most comprehensive local access networks in the Western United States .

Pac-West has not been denied requested certification in any jurisdiction, nor has any permit,

license, or certificate been revoked by any authority.

8 .

	

Pac-West's success in developing innovative products and services and in

expanding its geographic reach has translated into impressive growth in recent years and as such

Pac-West is extremely well-qualified financially to operate and expand its business . In 2004,

Pac-West's usage grew to 44.7 billion minutes of use generating revenue of more than $124

million . Financial information demonstrating Pac-West's financial qualifications is provided in

its most recent Form 10-K; a copy of the financial statements contained in the Form 10-K are

attached hereto as Exhibit C . As shown in the attached information, Pac-West is financially

qualified to operate within the State ofMissouri .

9 .

	

Pac-West is technically and managerially qualified to provide competitive local

exchange and interexchange services it proposes as required by Section 392 .455(1), RSMo. Pac

West's Missouri operations will be directed by its existing corporate management, technical and

operations staffs who are responsible for the interexchange and local exchange operations in

other states . A description of the background of Applicant's key personnel, which demonstrates

the extensive managerial experience of Pac-West's management team, is attached hereto as

Exhibit D.



10 .

	

Applicant in the past three (3) years has in the normal course of business been

party to regulatory proceedings . The status of pending proceedings is described in Pac-West's

most recent Form 10-K . A copy ofthe legal proceedings information contained in the Form 10-K

is attached as Exhibit E.

Description of Services

11 .

	

Pac-West seeks authority to provide facilities-based and resold local exchange

throughout all exchanges currently served by Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, Sprint,

CenturyTel of Missouri and Spectra Communications and interexchange telecommunications

services to and from all points in the State of Missouri .

	

The specific exchanges within which

Pac-West proposes to offer service are listed in the incumbent local exchange carrier's ("ILEC")

respective local exchange tariffs . Therefore, Pac-West seeks only regional authority with respect

to its basic local offerings, based upon the exchange footprint of the ILEC's just referenced, but

seeks statewide authority for its interexchange service . Pac-West may seek authority to provide

basic local service in other areas of the State in a subsequent proceeding .

12 .

	

Pac-West will, through interconnection with other carriers or resale of other

carriers' services, provide access to 911 and enhanced 911 emergency services and provide

directory assistance and operator assisted calling currently provided by incumbent local

exchange carriers .

13 . Pac-West will provide comprehensive customer service to its customers .

Customers may report complaints to the customer service department. Customer service will be

available to answer customer service inquiries in connection with new service, repair or billing.

Furthermore, customer service is prepared to respond to a broad range of service matters,

including inquiries regarding : (1) the types of services offered by Pac-West and the rates



associated with such services ; (2) monthly billing statements ; (3) problems or concerns

pertaining to a customer's current service ; and (4) general matters .

14 .

	

Pac-West representatives are available twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7)

days a week. Customers may contact Pac-West in writing at Pac-West's headquarters located at

1776 W. March Lane, Suite 250, Stockton, CA 95207, or by calling a toll-free customer service

number to be provided on each invoice for service . Pac-West's toll-free customer service number

is (877) 626-4325 .

15 .

	

While Pac-West will offer traditional voice services to customers utilizing the

public switched network, Pac-West will also offer services using Internet Protocol to provide

voice and data applications that interact seamlessly with the traditional public switched network .

Pac-West seeks classification ofthese services and itself as competitive .

16 .

	

Pac-West will continuously monitor and maintain a high level of control over its

network on a 24-hours-a-day, 7-days-a-week basis . Pac-West will give consideration to

equitable access to all Missourians, regardless of where they might reside or their income, to

affordable telecommunications services in Pac-West's proposed service areas in accordance with

Section 392.455(5), RSMo.

D.

	

Compliance with Rules and Request for Waiver

17.

	

Pac-West is willing to comply with all applicable Commission rules and is willing

to meet all relevant service standards, including, but not limited to, billing, quality of service, and

tariff filing and maintenance in a manner consistent with the Commission's requirements for

incumbent local exchange carriers with whom Pac-West seeks to compete. Additionally, Pac-

West agrees that, pursuant to Section 392 .455(3) & (4) RSMo., its service areas shall be no

smaller than an exchange and Pac-West will offer basic local telecommunication service .



Pursuant to Section 392.420, RSMo consistent with the Commission's treatment of other

certificated competitive local exchange and interexchange telecommunications companies, Pac-

West requests that the following statutes and regulations be waived for Pac-West and its basic

local exchange service and interexchange service offerings :

18 .

	

The above statutes and regulations have been waived previously for other

applicants seeking certification . These rules and statutory provisions are principally designed to

apply to non-competitive telecommunications carriers . As a result, it would be inconsistent with

the goal and purpose of federal and state statutes to apply these rules and statutes to a

competitive company such as Pac-West .

19 .

	

Pac-West further requests a temporary waiver of 4 CSR 240-3 .510(1)(C), which

requires that a application for a certificate of service authority to provide basic local exchange

service shall include a proposed tariff with a forty-five day effective date . Pac-West is unable to

develop tariffs to fully comply with this rule since Pac-West has not yet executed or received

Commission approval of any interconnection and/or resale agreements with ILECs . At such time

as Pac-West has determined all of the information necessary to develop its tariffs, Pac-West will

promptly file the tariffs bearing no less than a 45 day effective date with the Commission in a

manner consistent with the Commission's practice in similar cases . In any circumstance,

Statutes Missouri Public Service Commission Rules

392.210.2 4 CSR 240-10 .020
392.240.1 4 CSR 240-30.040
392.270 4 CSR 240-3 .550(5)(C)
392.280
392.290
392.300.2
392.310
392.320
392.330
392.340



Applicant will file its proposed basic local exchange telecommunications service tariff no later

than 30 days after Commission approval of Applicant's interconnection and/or resale agreement .

20 .

	

Pac-West submits, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 392.500 RSMo., as a

condition of certification and competitive classification, Pac-West agrees that, unless otherwise

ordered by the Commission, Pac-West's originating and terminating switched exchange access

rates will be no greater than the lowest Commission-approved corresponding access rates in

effect for each ILEC within whose service area(s) Pac-West seeks to provide service .

Additionally, pursuant to the Commission's Report and Order in Case No. TO-99-596, Pac-West

agrees that if the ILEC in whose service area Pac-West is operating decreases its originating

and/or terminating access service rates, Pac-West shall file an appropriate tariff amendment to

reduce its originating and/or terminating access rates within thirty (30) days of the ILEC's

reduction of its originating and/or terminating access rates in order to maintain the cap on

switched exchange access rates .

21 .

	

Pac-West, pursuant to Section 386 .570 RSMo, will comply with all applicable

Commission rules except those specifically waived by the Commission pursuant to Pac-West's

request .

E .

	

Public Interest Considerations

Granting this Application will promote the public interest by increasing competition in

the provision of telecommunications services in Missouri . Pac-West will provide customers high

quality, cost effective telecommunications services, with an emphasis on customer service . In

addition to driving prices closer to costs, thereby ensuring just and reasonable rates, competition

also promotes efficiency in the delivery of services and in the development of new services .

These benefits work to maximize the public interest by providing continuing incentives for



carriers to reduce costs while, simultaneously, promoting the availability of potentially desirable

services .

III . CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, Applicant respectfully submits that the public interest,

convenience, and necessity would be furthered by a grant of this Application for the authority to

provide all types of facilities-based and resold local and interexchange telecommunications services .

Respectfully submitted,

Dated: [Date]

By:

Mark W. Comley
NEWMAN, COMLEY & RUTHPC
Monroe Bluff Executive Center
601 Monroe Street, Suite 301
P.O. Box 537
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0537
Tel :

	

(573) 634-2266
Fax:

	

(573) 634-3306

Richard M . Rindler
Brian McDermott
SWIDLER BERLIN LLP
3000 K Street, NW, Suite 300
Washington, DC 20007-5116
(202) 424-7500 (Tel)
(202) 424-7645 (Fax)

COUNSEL FOR APPLICANT



Certificate of Service

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing document was
sent via e-mail on this 4,4 day of October, 2005, to General Counsel's Office at
gencounsel@psc.mo.gov ; and Office of Public Counsel at opcservice@ded.mo.gov .
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Exhibit A

Articles of Incorporation



l, BILL JONES, Secretaryof State of the State of California,
hereby certify.

That the attached transcript of _ L page(s) has
been compared with the record on file in this office, of
which it purports to be a copy, and that it is full, true
and correct.

SECRETARY OF STATE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I execute this
certificate and affix the Great Seal of
the State of California this day of

SEP
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF
AMENDED AND RESTATED

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

WALLACEW. GRIFFIN and DENNIS V. MEYER certify that

1 .

	

They are the President and Assistant Secretary, respectively, ofPAC-
WEST TELECOMM, INC, a California corporation.

2 .

	

TheArticles ofIncorporation ofthis corporation are amended and restated
in their entirety to read as follows:

ARTICLE I

The name of this Corporation is Pae-West Telecomm, Inc .

ARTICLE II

The purpose ofthis Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for
which a corporation may be organized under the General Corporation Law ofCalifornia
other than the banking business, the trust company business or the practice ofa
profession permitted to be incorporated by . the California Corporations Code.

ARTICLE III

Section 1 .

	

Authorized Shares . The corporation is authorized to issue two
classes of shares, to be designated common and preferred, respectively . The corporation
is authorizedto issue 100,000,000 shares ofcommon stock, par value $0.001 per share,
and 10,000,000 shares ofpreferred stock.

ENDORSED 7ICED
IM THE OFFIC F THEs=PDCTxc~r -

Section 2 .

	

Preferred Shares . The shares ofpreferred stock may be issued in
any number ofseries, as determined by the Board ofDirectors. The Board may, by
resolution, establish the designation and number ofshares ofany such series, and may
determine, alter or revokethe rights, preferences and restrictions pertaining to any wholly
unissued series . The Board may thereafter, by resolution, alter thenumber ofshares of
any such series .

A0551280
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ARTICLEW

Section t .

	

Elimination ofDirector Liability. The liability of directors ofthe
Corporation for monetary damages shall be eliminated m the fullest extent permissible
under California law.

Section 2.

	

Indemnification. The Corporation is authorized to provide
indemnification ofagents (as defined in Section 317 ofthe California Corporations Code)
through Bylaw provisions, agreements with agents, vote of shareholders or disinterested
directors, or otherwise, to the fullest extent permissible under California law .

I
Section 3 .

	

Effect ofAmendment. Any amendment, repeal or modification of
any provision ofthis Article IV shall not adversely affect any right or protection ofan
agent ofthis Corporation existing at the time ofsuch amendment, repeal or modification.

The foregoing amendment and restatement of Articles ofIncorporation ;
was duly approved by the Board ofDirectors ofthis Corporation.

4 .

	

The foregoing amendment and restatement ofArticles of Incorporation
has been duly approved by the required vote ofshareholders in accordance with Section
902 of the California Corporations Code . Tlte total number of outstanding shares ofthis
Corporation entitled to vote with respect to the amendment was

	

35.863,543
shares, the favorable vote ofa majority of such shares is required to approve the
amendment, and the number ofsuch shares voting in favor ofthe amendment equaled or
exceeded the required vote. All outstanding stock is common stock, no shares of
preferred stock are outstanding .

5

	

Executed on

	

0/30/

	

. 2000, at Stockton, California

We further declare under penalty ofperjury under the laws ofthe State of
California that the matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct of our own
knowledge .

DEWSV. MEYER
Assistant Secretary

2
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The purpose of this Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which
a corporation may be organized under the General Corporation Law of California other than the
banking business, the treat company business or the practice of a profession permitted to be
Incorporated by the California Corporations Code.

AMENDEDAND RESTATED
ARTICLES OFINCORPORATION

OF
PAC-WEST TELECOMM. INC.

ARTICLE I

The narne of this Corporation is Pac"West Teleconun, Inc.

ARTICLE lI

ARTICLEm
A. AUTHORIZED SHARES

The total member ofshares ofcapital stock which the Corporation has authority to
issue is 1 .673.000 shares, consisting of'.

(1)

	

175,000 shares of Class A Participating Preferred Stock, par value 5,01 per
share (the "ClassA Preferred") ; and

(2)

	

1.500,000 shares of Common Stock par value S.01 per share (the "Common
Stool:")-

	

.
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B. CAPITAL. STOCK

Section 1 . Liquidation. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Corporation (whether voluntary or involuntary), each holder of a share of Class A Preferred (a
"Share") shall be entitled to be paid, before any Distribution or other payment is made upon any
junior Securities, sn amount in cash equal to the amount which the holders ofClass A Preferred are
entitled to be paid pursuant to Section 3 hereof. Not less than 30 days prior to the payment date
stated therein. the Corporation shall mail written notice of any such liquidation, dissolution or
winding up to each record holder of Class APreferred, setting forth in reasonable detail the amount
ofproceeds to be paid with respect to each Share in connection with such liquidation, dissolution
or winding up. The consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into any other entity or
entities in which the Corporation is not the surviving entity, or any other form ofrecapitalization or
reorganization affecting The Corporation in which the Corporation is not the surviving entity, shall
be deemed to be a liquidation. dissolution or winding up of th? Co?+~+ratlon within the Meaning of
this Section 1, except for any such merger. consolidation, reoapitalization or reorganization which
is effected solely to change the state of incorporation ofthe Corporation.

Section 2 . Priority of Class APreferred on Distributions. So long as there is any
Unpaid Yield or Unretumed Original Cost outstanding, without. the prior written, consent of the
holders ofa majority of the outstanding shares of C1ass.A Preferred, the Corporation shall not, nor
shall it permit any Subsidiary to, make any Distribution, directly or indirectly, with respect to any
Class A Preferred or Junior Securities other than in accordance with the provisions of Section 3
below. except for (i) reptuchases ofCommon Stock from present or former employees or consultants
of the Corporation and its Subsidiaries upon termination of employment or consultancy in
accordance with arrangements approved by the Corporation's board of directors and so tong as no
Event ofNoncompliance is in existence immediately prior to or is otherwise caused by any such
repurchase, (ii) any redemption or repurchase of Class A Preferred or Common Stock pursuant to
any right of first refusal, first offer or similar right in favor of the Corporation approved by the
Corporation's board of directors so long as no Event ofNoncompliance is in existence immediately
prior to or is otherwise caused by any such repurchase. and (iii) dividends payable in shares of
Common Stock issued upon the outstanding shares of Common Stock in compliance with the
provisions of Section 8 below.

Section 3. Distributions. At the time of each Distribution, such Distribution shall
be made to the holders of Class A Preferred and Common Stock in the following priority :

3A.

	

Distribution of Unpaid Yield. The holders of Class A Preferred shall be
entitled to receive all or a portion of such Distribution (ratably among such holders based upon the
aggregate Unpaid Yield ofthe Shares of Class A Preferred held by each such holder as ofthe time
of such Distribution) equal to the aggregate Unpaid Yield on the outstanding shares ofClass A
Preferred as of the time of such Distribution, and no Distribution or any portion thereof shall be
made under paragraphs 3B or 3C below until the entire amount of the Unpaid Yield on the
outstanding Shares of Class A Prefermd .as of the time of such Distribution has been paid in full .
The Distributions made pursuant to this paragraph 3A to holders of Class A Preferred shall
constitute apayment of Yield on the Class A Preferred.



FILE Aia.ti82 06325 `{35 11 :29

	

MAX LEST-

	

. .

	

FAX:_ .
Ul .l -101~177i7

	

1G " 110

	

1.1 I.IJV'UKHI I UK SI~IdYXG

. 3B. . Distribution of Unreturned Original Cost. After the required amount of a
Distributionhas been made in full pursuant to paragraph 3A above, theholders ofClass A Preferred
shall be entitled to receive 411 or a portion of such Distribution (ratably amongsuch holders based
upon the aggregate Unretuuned Original Cost ofthe Shares of Class APreferred held by each such
holder a's ofthe time of. such Distribution) equal to the aggregate Unreturned Original Cost of the
outstanding shares ofClassAPreferred as ofthe time ofsuch Distribution, and no Distribution or
any portion thereof shall be made under paragraph 3C below until the entire amount of the
Unreturned original Cost of the outstanding Shares of Class A Preferred as of the time o£ such
Distribution has been paid in full . The Distributions made pursuant to This paragraph 3B ko holders
ofClass A Preferred shall constitute a return ofOriginal Cost ofthe Class A Preferred.

3C.

	

Remaining Distributions. After the required amount of a Distribution huts
been made pursuant to paragraphs .iA and sB above, the holders of Class APreferred and~Common
stock as a group, shall be entitled to receive the remaining portion of such Distribution (ratably
among such holders based upon the aggregate number ofshares of Class APreferred and Common
Stock held by each stwh holder as of the time of such Distribution).

	

,

Section 4. Redemotions at the Option of the Holders of Class A Preferred .

4A .

	

Redemption with Proceeds of Public Offerings.

(i)

	

Uponthe request of any holder of ClassA Preferred delivered at least
30 days prior to the expected consummation of any Public Offering as set forth in the notice
delivered by the Corporation pursuant to subparagraph 4A(iii) below, the Corporation shall apply
the net cash proceeds from any Public Offering remaining after deduction of ail discounts,
underwriTers' commissions and outer reasonable expenses to redeem the Shares ofClassAPreferred
requested to be redeemed by such holder at a price per Share determined pursuant To paragraph 4C
below; mmvided that the Corporation shall nor be requited to redeem any Class A Preferred pursuant
to this subparagraph 4A(i) in the event the Corporation receives a Conversion Notice (as dcfrned
below) prior to the consummation of such Public Offering from the holders of a majority of the
outstanding Class A Preferred pursuant to subparagraph 5A(ii) below.

(ii)

	

Upon the request of the holders of a majority of the outstanding
Class A Preferred delivered at least 15 days prior to the expected consummation of any Public
offering as set forth in the notice delivered by the Corporation pursuant to subparagraph 4A(iii)
below, the Corporation shall apply the net cash proceeds from any Public Offering remaining after
deduction ofall discounts, underwriters' conunissions and other reasonable expenses to redeem all
outstanding Shares of Class A Preferred at a price per Share determined pursuant to paragraph 4C
below. .

(iii)

	

The Corporation shall send written notice of any proposed Public
Offering and the expected date ofthe consurstmation ofsuch Public Offering by reputable overnight
courier service (charges prepaid) to each record holder of Class A Preferred not less than 60 days
prior to the Corporation's expected date of the consummation of such Public Offering .

	

The

PAGE 3
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Corporation shall provide written notice of any redemption of Shares of Class APreferred pursuant
to paragraph 4A ro all holders of ClassAPreferred within 3 days after thereceipt of any redemption
notice delivered-pursuant tothis paragraph 4A. Any redemptionputsuant to this paragraph 4A shall
take place on adate fixed by the Corporation, which date shall not be more than three days after the
Corporation's receipt of the proceedsofany Public Offering. Except as to the Shares so redeemed,
redemptions of Shares pursuant to this paragraph 4A shall not relieve the Corporation of its
obligation to redeem Shares pursuant to paragraph 4B below_

'

	

4B.

	

optional Redemptions by Holders. At any time and from time to time after
December 31, 2003, the holders of a majority ofthe outstanding Class A Preferred may request
redemption of all or any portion oftheir Shares ofClassA Preferred by delivering written notice of.
such request ro the Corporation. Within five days after receipt ofsuch request, the Corporation shall
give written notice of such request to all other holders ofClass A Preferred, and such other holders
may request redamy"vr* ;.f ".c-- aaj' portion of their Shares of Class A Preferred by delivering
written notice to the Corporation within ten days after receipt of rbe Corporation's nbdce. The
Corporation shall be required to redeem all Shares with'respect to which such redemption requests
have been made at a price per Share determined pursuant to paragraph 4C below within 60 days after
receipt of the initial redemption request therefor . Except as to the Shares so redeemed, redemptions
pursuant to this paragraph 4B shad not relieve the Corporation of its obligation to redeem Shares
pursuant to paragraph 4A above.

4C .

	

Redemption Payments . For each Share which is to be redeemed hereunder.
the Corporation shall be obligated on the Redemption Date to . pay to the holder thereof (upon
surrender by such holder at the Corporation's principal office of the certificate representing such
Share) an amount in immediately available fiwds equal to the Unretumed Original Cost plus Unpaid
yield with respect to such Share. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, ifthe funds of
the Corporation (i) legally available pursuant to the General Corporation Law of California for the
redemption of Shares on any Redemption Date or (ii) permitted to be used for the redemption of
Shams.pursuant to any debt financing agreement ofthe Corporation on any Redemption Date are
in either case insufficient to redeem the total number of Shares to be redeemed on such date, those
funds which are available,puxsuant to the California General Corporation Law andpermitted to be
used pursuant to any such debt financing agreement ofthe Corporation shall be used to redeem the
maximumpossible number of Shares pro rata among the holders ofthe Shares to be redeemed based
upon the aggregate Unreturned Original Cost plus Unpaid Yield of the Shares held by each such
holder. At any time thereafter when additional funds ofthe Corporation are available pursuant to
the foregoing sentence for the redemptionofShares, such funds shall immediately be used to redeem
the balance ofthe Shares which the Corporation has become obligated to redeem on any Redemption
Date but which it has not redeemed.

4D.

	

Partial Redemptions. In case fewer than the total number ofShares represatt-
cd by any certificate are redeemed, a taw certificate representing the number of unredeemed Shares
shall be issued to the holder thereof without costto such holder within three business days after
surrender ofthe certificate representing the redeemed Shares .
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4E.

	

Dividends After Redemption Date . No Share shall be entitled to any
dividends accruing after the date on which the amount determined pumuaur to paragraph 4C above
is paid to the bolder ofsuch Share. On such date, all rights ofthe holderof such Share shall cease, .
andsuch Share Shall no longer be deemed to be issued and outstanding.

4F.

	

Fcdecmed.or Otherwise Acquired Shares . Any Shares whichareyedeemed
or otherwise acquired by the Corporation shall be canceled and retired and shall not be reissued, sold
or transferred.

40.

	

Other Redemptions or Acquisitions. The Corporation shall not, tlor shall it
permit anySubsidiary to, redeem or otherwise acquire any Shares of Class A Preferred, except as
expressly authorized hemin- or except pursuant to i purchase offer made pro"rara to all holders of
Class A Preferred on the basis ofthe number of Shares owned by each such holder.

Section 5. Conversion at the, Optionofthe Holders of Class A_Preferredi

5A.

	

Conversion Obligations.

(i)

	

In connection with the consummation ofa Public Offering, any holder
of Class A Preferred may cause all Shares ofClassA Preferred held by such holder to be converted
to Conversion Stock upon the consummation of such Public Offering by delivering written notice
to the Corporation (a "Conversion Notice ") at least 30 days prior to the expected consummation of
such Public Offering as .set forth in the notice delivered by the Corporationpursuant to subparagraph
4A(iii) above; provided that the Corporation shall notbe required to convert nay ClassA Preferred
pursuant to this subparagraph 5A(i) in the event the Corporation receives a redemption notice from
the holders of a majority of the outstanding Class A Preferred pursuant to subparagmph .AA(ii)
above.

(ii)

	

In connection with the consummation ofaPublic Offering, the hold=
ofa majority of the outstanding Shares of Class A Preferred may cause all outstanding Shares of
Class A Preferred to be convened to Conversion Stock upon the consummation of such Public
Offering by delivering written notice to the Corporation (also a "Conversion Notice") at least 15 days
prior to the expected consummation ofsuch Public Offering as set forth in the notice delivered by
the Corporation pursuant to subparagraph 4A(iii) above.

	

.

(iii)

	

TheCorporation shall provide written notice ofthe Conversion ofany
Shares of ClassA Preferred to all holders of ClassA Preferred at least five days prior to such
conversion.

5B.

	

Conversion Procedure.

(i)

	

Upon delivery of a Conversion Notice. each Share of Class A
Preferred (including any fraction ofa Share) to which such conversion notice relates shall convert
into a number of shares ofConversion Stock computed by dividing the Unreturned Original Cost

PAGE 5
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plus Unpaid Yield with respect to such Share by the price per share of Conversion Stock to the
public in such Public Offering (the "Offeritw Price").

(ii)

	

Each conversion of Class A Preferred shall be deemed to have bees
effected upon the consummation of such Public Offering. At such time, the rights ofthe holder of
such Class A Preferred as a holder ofClass A Preferred shall cease and the Person on Persons in
whose same or names any certificate or certificates for shares of Conversion Stock are to be issued
upon such conversion shall be deemed to have become the holder or holders of record of the shares

	

'
ofConversion Stock represented thereby.

I
As soon as possible after a conversion has been effected (but in any

event within five (5) business days after such conversion), the Corporation .shall deliver to the
converting holder, upon surrender to the Corporation at its principal office by the converting holder
of its certificate for the converted ClassA Preferred. a certificate or cerrificates r_e resenting the
number ofshares of Conversion Stock issuable by reason of such conversion in -the nam'e or names
and in such denominations as such converting holder has specified.

(iv)

	

The issuance of certificates for shares.of Conversion Stock upon
conversion of Class A Preferred shall be trade without charge to the bolders of such Class A
Preferred for any issuance . tax in respect thereof or other cost incurred by the Corporation in
connection with such conversion and the related issuance of shares of Conversion Stock. Upon
conversion of each Share of Class A Preferred. the. Corporation shall take all such actions as are '
necessary in order to insure that the Conversion Stock issuable with respect to such conversion shall
be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and free and clear of all liens, charges and
encumbrances .

(v)

	

The Corporation shall not close its books against the transfer of
ClassA Preferred or of Conversion Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of Class A Preferred
in any manner which interferes with the timely conversion of such Shares.

(vi)

	

Ifarty fractional interest in a share ofConversion Stock would, except
for the provisions of this subparagraph 511(vi), be deliverable upon any conversion ofthe Class A -
Preferred, the Corporation, in lieu of delivering the fractional share therefor, may elect to pay an
amount to the holder thereofequal to the Offering Price of such fractional interest as ofthe date of
conversion.

(vii)

	

The.Corporation shall take all such actions as may be necessary to
assure that all such shares ofConversion Stock may be so issued without violation ofany applicable
law or govemntental regulation or any requirements ofany domestic sccuzities exchange upon which
shares of Conversion Stock may be listed (except for official notice of issuance which shill be
immediately delivered by the Corporation upon each such issuance).

(viii)

	

In connection with any conversion pursuant to this Section 5, the
Corporation shall take all actions necessary to make available out of its authorized but unissued
shares'ofConversion Stock, solely for the purpose of issuance upon the conversion of the ClassA
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Preferred, such number of shares of Conversion Stock issuable upon the conversion of all
outstanding Class APreferred,

Section 6. Voting Rights. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law. the
Class A Preferred shall have no voting rights . Notwithstanding the foregoing, each holder of
Class A Preferred shall be entitled to notice ofall shareholders meetings at the same tunaand in the
same manner as notice is given to all shareholders entitled to vote at such meetings. The holderss of
the Common Stock shall be entitled to notice of all shareholders meetings in accordance with the
Corporation's bylaws, and the holders ofthe Common Stock shall be entitled to one vote per share
on all matters submitted to the shareholders of the Corporation for a vote.

	

i

Section 7. Events ofNoncornpliance.

7A.

	

Defwdtioa. An Eventofsxh_1l have occurred if i

(i)

	

theCorporation fails to make anyredemption payment with respect
to the Class A Preferred which it is required to make hereunder (after giving effect to the second
sentence ofparagraph 4C hereof);

(ii)

	

the Corporation or any material Subsidiary makesan assignment for
the benefit of creditors or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become
due; or an order, judgment or dbcree is entered adjudicating the Corporation or any material
Subsidiary bankrupt or insolvent; or any order for relief with respect to the Corporation or any
material Subsidiary is entered under the Federal .Banktuptcy Code; or the Corporation or any
material Subsidiary petitions or applies to any tribunalfor the appointment ofa custodian;trustee,
receiver or liquidator of the Corporation or any material Subsidiary or ofany substantial pan of the
assets of the Corporation or any material Subsidiary, or commences any proceeding (other than a
proceeding for the voluntary liquidation and dissolution of a material Subsidiary) relating to the
Corporation or any Subsidiary under any bankruptcy, reorganization ; arrangement. insolvency,
readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction ; or any such petition or
application is filed, or any such proceeding is commenced, against the Corporation of any material
Subsidiary and either (a) the Corporation or any such maicrial Subsidiary by any act indicates its
approval thereof, consent thereto or acquiescence therein or . (b) such petition, application or
proceeding is not dismissed within 60 days; or

(iii)

	

theCorporation or any Subsidiary defaults in the performance ofany
obligation or agreement or there shall otherwise occur an event of default under any agreement to
which the Corporation or any Subsidiary is a parry ifthe effect ofsuch default or event of default
is to cause an amount exceeding $500,000 to become due prior to its grated maturity .

7B.

	

Consequences ofEvents ofNoncompliance.

(i)

	

Ifan Event ofNoncompliance has occurred (other than an Event of
Noncompliance of the type described in subparagraph 7A(ii)), the holder or holders of a majority
of the Class A Preferred then outstanding may demand (by written notice delivered to the
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Corporation) immediate redemption of aA or any portion ofthe Class A-Preferred owned by such
holder or holders at a price per Share equal to the Umetumed Original Cost plus Unpaid Yield with
respect to such Share. The Corporation shall give prompt written notice ofsuch election ro the other
holders ofClassAPreferred (but in any event within five days after receipt ofthe initial demand for
redemption from the holder or holders ofa majoriry ofthe Class A Preferred then outstanding), and
each such other holder may demand immediate redemption of all or any portion of such holder's
Class APreferred by giving written notice thereof to the Corporation within seven days after receipt
ofthe Corporations notice. TheCorporation shall redeem all Class A Preferred as to .which rights
under this-paragraph 713 have been exercised within 30 days after receipt ofthe initial demand for
redemption from the holder or holders_ofa majority of the Class APreferred then outstanding.

(ii)

	

if an Event o£ Noncompliance of the type described in
subparagraph 7A(ii) has occurred . all of the Class A Preferred then outstanding shall be subject to
immediate redemption by theCos wdpn(withem any action on the part ofthe holders offthe Class
A Preferred) at a price per Share equal to the amount which the holders of Class A Preferred are
entitled to be paid with respect to each Share pursuant to Section 3 above. The Corporation shall
immediately redeem all Class APreferred upon the occurrence of such Event ofNoncompliance.

(iii)

	

Ifany Event ofNoncompliance exists, each holder of Class A Pre-
ferred shall also have any other rights which such holder is entitled to under any contract or
agreement at any time and any other rights which such holder mayhave pursuant to applicable law.

Section .S . Stock Splits and Stock Dividends. The Corporation shall nor in any .
manner subdivide (by stock split, stock dividend or otherwise) or combine (by stock split, stock
dividend or otherwise) the outstanding shares ofClass A Preferred or Common Stock, as the case
may be, unless the outstanding shares of the other class shall be proportionately subdivided or
combined. All such subdivisions and combinations shat l be payable only in Class ?. Preferred to the
holders ofClass A Preferred and in Common Stock to the holders ofCommon Stock. Inho event
shall a stock split or stock dividend .constitute apayment of Yield or a return of Original Cost .

Section9.

	

Registration ofTransfer. The Corporation shall keep at its principal
office a register for the registration of Class A Preferred. Upon the surrender of any certificate
representing Class A Preferred at such place, the Corporation shall. at the request of the record
holder of such certificate, execute and deliver (at the Corporation's expense) a new certificate or
certificates in exchange therefor representing in the aggregate the number of Shares represented by
the surrendered certificate . Each ;uch new certificate shall be registered in such name and still
represent such number ofShares as is requested by the. holder of the surrendered certificate and shall
be substantially identical in form to the surrendered certificate, and dividends shall accrue on the
Class A Preferred represented by such new certificate from the date to whichdividends have been
fully paid on such Class A Preferred represented by the surrendered certificate .

Section 10. Replacement. Upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the
Corporation (an affidavit of the registered holder shall be satisfactory) ofthe ownership and the loss,
theft, destruction or mutilation ofany certificate evidencing Shares of Class A Prcfernd, and in the
case ofany such loss, theft or destruction, upon receipt of indemnity reasonably satisfactory. to the

NiGE 8



FILE ido,602 0825 '-05 11 :32

	

ID -PAC lJES7

	

PEE

	

9
uel-gl-177[1

	

141:14

	

LI L111V'IJ<HI jUM bynlu'1-X&

	

aa~

	

e~ , .uoti,~

	

r., ., ,o

Corporation or, in the case ofany such mutilation. upon surrender ofsuch certificate, the Corporation
shall (at its expense) execute and deliver in lieu of such certificate a new certificate of like kind
representing the number of Shares of such class represented by such lost, stolen, destroyed or
mutilated certificate anddated the date of such lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated certificate, and
dividends shall accrue on the ClassA Preferred represented by such new certificate from the dare
to which dividends have been fully paid on such lost, stolen . destroyed or mutilated certificate,

. Section 11 . Definitiotu.

"Common Stock" means the Corporation's Common Stock and any other capital
stock of any class of the Corporation hereafter authorized which is not limited to a fixed stmt or
percentage of par or stated value in respect to the rights of the holders thereof to Par icipate in
dividends or in the distribution of assets upon any liquidation . dissolution or winding up of the
Corporation.'' . ._ .

."Conversion Stock" means shares of the Common Stock; provided that ifthere is a,
change such that the securities issuable upon conversion ofthe Class A Prefemd are issued by an
entity other than the Corporation or there is a change'in the class of securities so issuable, then the
term "Conversion Stock" shall mean shares ofthe security issuable upon conversion of the Class A
Preferred if such security is issuable in shares, or shall mean the units in which such security is
issuable if such security is not issuable in shares .

"Distribution" means each distribution made by'the Corporation to holders of
ClassA preferred or Common Stock, whether in cash, property, or securities ofthe Corporation and
whether by dividend. liquidating distributions ofotherwise; provided that tone ofthe following shall
be a Distribution : (a) any redemption or repurchase by the Corporation of any ClassA Preferred
pursuant to Section 4 above, (b) any conversion of any Class A Preferred pursuant to Section 5
above, (c) any redemption or repurchase of Class A Preferred or Common Stock pursuant to any
right of fuss refusal. first offer of similar tight in favor of the Corporation approved by the
Corporation's Board of Directors so long as no Event ofNoncompliance is in existence intmediarely
prior to or is otherwise caused by any such repurchase. (d) repurchases of Common Stock from
present or former employees or consultants ofthe Corporation and its Subsidiaries upon termination
ofemployment or consultancy in accordance with arrangements approved by the Corporation's board
of directors and so long as no Event of Noncompliance is in existence immediately prior to or is
otherwise caused by any such repurchase or (e) any recapitalization or exchange of any Class .A.
Preferred or Common Stock in compliance with the provisions ofSection 8 above or any subdivision
(by stock split, stock dividend or otherwise) or any combination (by stock split; stock dividend or
otherwise) of any outstanding Class A Preferred or Common Stock in compliance with the
provisions of Section &.above.'

"lunioi Securities" means any capital stock or other equity securities of the
Corporation, except for the Class A Preferred.
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"Original Cost' ofeach share of Class A Preferred shall be equal to $360:00 per
sbere (as proportionally adjusted for all stock splits, stock dividends and other recapitalizations
affecting the ClassA Preferred) .

" Person" means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability
company. an association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated

	

.
organization and a governmental entity or any department, agency or political subdivision thereof.

"Public Offering " means any offering by the Corporation of its equity or debt
securities or any rights to acquire any of its equity or debt securities to the public pursuant to an
effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1953, as then in effect, or anycomparable
statement under any similar federal statute then in force.

"Redemption Date" as to any Share means the .'.ate specified in the actt== cf =-, .
redemption at the Corporation's option or the applicable date specified herein with respect to any
other redemption; provided that no such date shall be a Redemption Date unless the Unretumcd
Original Cost plus Unpaid Yield with respect to such Share is actually paid in full on such date, and
if not so paid in full, the Redemption Date shall be the date on which such amount is fully paid.

"Subsidiary " means, with respect to any Person, any corporation, limited liability
company. partnership, association or othei business entity ofwhich (i) ifa corporation. a majority
of the total voting power of shares of stock entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any
contingency) to vote in the election ofdirectors, managers or uustees rhcreofjs at the time owned
or controlled . directly or indirectly, by that Person or one or more ofthe other Subsidiaries of that
Person or a combination thereof, or (ii) if a limited liability company, partnership, association or
other business entity, a majority ofthe partnership of other similar ownership interest thereof is at
the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly; by that Person or one or more Subsidiaries of
that Person or a combination thereof. For purposes hereof, a Person .or Persons shall be deemed to
have a majority ownership interest in a limited liability company, parmershiP, association or other
business entity if such Person or Persons shall be allocated a majority oflimited liability company,
partnership, association or other business entity gains or lasses or shall be or control the managing
general oarmer of such limited liability company, partnership. association or other business entity .

"Wholly-Owned Subsidiary " means. with respect to any Person. a Subsidiary of
whichall ofthe issued and outstanding capital stock or other ownership interests are ownedby such
Person or another Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of such Person .

"Unpaid Yield" of any Share of Class A Preferred mesas an amount equal to the
excess, if any, of (a) the aggregate Yield accrued on such Share, over (b) the aggregate amount of
Distributions made by the Corporation that constitute payment of Yield on such Sham.

"Unrerumed Origmal Cost" of any Share of Class A Preferred means an amount
equal to the excess, if any, of(a) the Original Cost of such Share. over (b) the aggregate amount of
Distributions made by the Corporation that constitute a return of Original Cost of such Share.
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"Yield" means, with respect to each Share of Class A Preferred for each calendar
quarter, the amount accruing on such Share each day during such quarter at the rate of 10% per
annum of the sum of(a) such shares .UmcmmedOriginal Cost, plus (b) Unpaid Yield thereon for
all prior quarters . In calculating the amount of any Distribution to be made during a calendar
quarter, the portion of a Class A Preferred share's YicJd for such portion ofsuch quarter elapsing
before such Distribution is made shall be taken into account

Section 12. Amendmentand Waiver. No amendment, modification or waiver shall
be binding or effective with respect to any provision -of Sections 1 to I1 of this Subdivision a
without the prior written consent of the holders of85% ofibc .Class A Preferred outstanding at the
time such-action is taken: ro~ vided chat no change in the terms hereof may be accomplished by
merger or consolidation of the Corporation with another corporation or entity unless the Corporation
has obtained the prior written consent of the holders of 85% of The ClassA Preferred then
outstanding.

	

i -

Section 13 . Notices. All notices, demands or other communications to be given or
delivered hereunder shall be in writing and shall he deemed to have been given when delivered
personally to the recipient or one (1) business day after being sent to the recipient by reputable
overnight courier service (charges prepaid) or five (5) business days after being mailed to the
recipient by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested andpostage prepaid. Such notices,
demands and other communications shall be sent (i) to the Corporation, at its principal executive
offices and (Ji) to any stockholder, at such holder's address as it appears in the stock records of the
Corporation (unless otherwise indicated by any such holder).

ARTICLE IV

Section 2.

	

Indemnification .

	

The 'Corporation is autborized to provide
indemnification ofagents (as defined in Section 317 of the California Corporations Codc)through
Bylaw provisions, agreements with agents, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors, or
otherwise. to the fullest extent permissible under California law.

Section 3 .

	

Effect ofAmendment Anyamendment, repeal or modification ofany
provision of this Article IV shall not adversely affect any right or protection ofan agent of this
Corporation existing .at the time of such amendment, repeal or modification

PAGE 11
r .lwlo

Section 1 .

	

Elimination of Director Liability. The liability of directors of the
Corporation for monetary damages shall be eliminated to the fullest extent permissible under
California law.
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John K. La Rueand Roger L. Westphal state and certify that:

Signed on September 16, 1998 .

' CERTIFICATE OFAPPROVAL OF AGREEMENTOFMERGER

1 .

	

They are the President and Secretary, respectively, of Pac-West Teleconun, Inc� a
California corporation.

2.

	

'

	

The AgreementofMerger in the foray attached was duly approved by the Board
ofDirectors and shareholders ofthe corporation.

I
Thae is only one class ofshares and the total number of outstanding shares is

10,000 .

a.

	

Theshareholder approval was by the_ holders ofone hundred percent (10(r) Pfthe outstanding shares ofthe corporation.

3.

	

Theshareholders have approved the Amended and Restated Arddes attached as
Exhibit A to the Agreement ofMerger,

On the date set forth below, in the City ofSan Francisco in the State of California,
each of the undersigned does hereby declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws
of The State ofCalifornia that he signed the foregoing certificate in the official capacity
set forth beneath his.signature, and that the statements -set forth in said certificate are true
of his own knowledge.

cQ: l _.e
Jo

	

K. La Rue,

	

resident

A:1GE 12

~estphal, Secre

	

.



Exhibit B

Authority to Transact Business
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WHEREAS.

n

r-VNrVE OFa~YMISSO,. . . . . . : t,~.

using in Missouri the name

a

IN TESTENIONY WHEREOF, I have set my
hand and imprinted the GREATSFAL of the
State of Missouri, on this, the 17th day of
August, 2005 .

Robin Carnahan
Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE' 01' AUTHORITY

Sccraaary of State

RfIC-WEST 1Zi'LEC0AIdr4, INC.
1'0(1679288

PAC-WE'ST TE'I ECO.VHv1,

has complied with the General and Business Corporation Law which governs Foreign
Corporations ; by filing in the office of the Secretary of State ol Missouri authenticated evidence
of its incorporation and good standing raider the Laws of the State of California.

NOW,111F,RE,FORE, I, ROBIN CARNAHAN, Secretary of State of the State of Missouri, (It)
hereby cet,ify that said corporation is firm this date duly authorized to transact business in this
State, and is entitled to all rights and privileges granted to Foreign Corporations under the
General and Business Corporation Law of Missouri .

mg,

ae

S
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Board ofDirectors and Stockholders

PaCWestTelecomm, Inc .
Stockton, California

Report ofIndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet ofPec-West Telccomm, Inc . and subsidiaries as ofDecember 31,
2004 and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income poss), changes in stockholders' equity, and
cash flows for the year then ended. We have also audited the 2004 Schedule 11-Valuation andQualifying Accounts (the Schedule).
The financial statements and the Schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and the Schedule based on our audit

Weconducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) .
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finatkiat statements and
Schedule are firm of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, aor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration ofinternal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, butnot for thepurpose ofexpressing an opinion on the
effectiveness ofthe Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion . An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements air the Schedule.
assessing the accounting principlesused andsignificant estimates madeby management as well as evaluating the pverall presentation
ofthe financial statement and the Schedule . We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion .

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
ofPac-West Telecomm, Inc. and subsidiaries atDecember 31, 2004 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica

Also in our opinion, the Schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein .

/s/ BDO SEIDMAN, LLP

San Francisco, California

February 25.2005, cxccpt for Note 18, which is dated as of March 11, 2005

F-2
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To the Board ofDirectors and Stockholders

Pac-West Telecomm, Inc .

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet ofPac-West Telxomm, Inc . and subsidiaries as ofDecember 31,
2003 and the related consolidated statements ofoperations and comprehensive income (loss), changes in stockholders' equity and rash
flows for each ofthe years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2003 . In connection with our audits of the consolidated
financial statements, we have also audited the accompanying financial statement schedule for each ofthe years in the two-year period
ended December 31, 2003 . These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility ofthe
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits .

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free ofmaterial misstatement . An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit als o includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation . Webelieve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position ofPac-West Telecomm, Inc, and subsidiaries as ofDecember31, 2003, and the results oftheir operations and their
cash flows for each of the years in thetwo-year period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with U.S . generally accepted .
accounting principles . Also, m our opinion, the related 2003 and 2002 information in the financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements takenas a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

Mountain View, California

February 13, 2004

/a/ ICPMG LLP
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As ofDecember 31, 2004 and 2003
(in thousands except share and per share data)

2004 2083

ASSETS

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

F-4

CURRENTASSETS:
Cash and cash ociar alanm S 32,265 S 34,657
Sbon-tam invesmwns 10,501 -
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances of $366 and$1360 as
of December 31 .2004 and 2003, respectively 12,774 7,713
Prepaid expenses and other current assess 5,316 4,576
Deferred tax assets - 3 .467

Total ctarentassets 60,856 50,413
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 43,413 121 .211
GOODWILL 119 -
OTHER. ASSETS, net 2,664 2,578 Ia

TOWasacls S 107,052 I5 174,202

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES :

Accounts payable S 5,684 S 6.098
Current obligadomunder noarpayableasdcap(telleases 2,889 2,606
Accrued interest 2,208 2,096
Other accrued liabilities 12,445 11 .696
Deferred revenues 846 594

Total eunmt habilites 24,072 23,090
SENIOR NOTES 36,102 36,102
NOTES PAYABLE, less current portion 28385 18,421
CAPITAL LEASES, less current portion 651 191
DEFERRED REVENUES, less current portion 353 467
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - 3,467

Tomlliabilities 89,463 81,738

COMMITMENT'S AND CONTINGENCIES (Nom 9)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY :
Common stack, 50.001 par value :

Authorized slates- 100,000,000
Issued and outstanding theses-36,792,426 and 36390,532 et
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively 37 37

Addi4oralpaid-ineopitN 204340 204,461
Deferred stoa compasston (565) (758)
Accumulated deficit (186,309) (111,276)
Acctunulaedother wmprehensdvelost (114) -

ToulstockLolders'equ(ty 17389 92,464

Total liabilities andstockholders'cgldty 5107.052 5174,202
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

(In thousands except per share data)

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Years

2004

Ended December

2003

31,

3002

REVENUES 5124,006 $134,640 f164A9g
COSTS AND EXPENSES:

Networl, mperaex 39,834 36,286 53525
Selling, general and administrative 58,065 59,217 60,114
Depreciation and amortization 32,565 44,000 40,650
Isaucotringrasrgcs 516 125 $620
Impairmrntofassets 54,898 - 16,621

Total operating experum 185,878 139,628 179,230

Loa from operatians (61,872) (4 .988) (15,132)

OTHER(INCOME)EXPENSE
Intereal expense 12,515 13,520 17,398
Interest income (409) (477) (1,605)
Loss (gain) on extinguishment ofdem - 3,689 (33,847)
Loss on asset dispositiony no 1,055 30 131

Tmat other (nourne) expense, net 13,161 16,762 (11,923)

(SASS) INCOME BEFOREINCOME TAXES (75,033) (21,750) 2,791
(BENEFIT FROM) PROVISION FORINCOME TAXES - (6300) 745

Net (loss) inmme S(75.033) S05,250) $ 2,046

NET (LOSS) INCOME PER SHARE :
Basic $ (2.05) S (0.42) S 0 .06
Diluted $ (2.05) S (0.42) S 0.06

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic 36,655 36,481 36,308
Diluted 36,655 36,481 36,334

COMPREHENSIVE (LASS) INCOME:
Net (Ions) income S (7S .033) S(15,250) S 2,046

Unmliud (lass) on invesnnents (114) - (103)
Reclassification of realized gain on sale of investmenu - 156 -

Coroptehms(ve Qass) income - S (75,147) S (11,094) S 1,943
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(Continued from above table, first columns) repeated)

PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANCES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(In thousands)

Deferred Total
Stock Sharebuiden'

Compensation Equity

[Additional columns below)

Common

Sham

Stock

Amount

Addidonal
Paid-In
capital

No"
Receivable

from
Shareholder,

Accumulated
(Deed/)

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income/
(Ian)

Balanee,December31,2001 36,148 S 36 5183,550 S(200) S (98,072) S (53)
Exercise of stock options 223 - 17 - - -
bsuance of shares order Employee Stock
Purchase Plan 73 - 101 - - -
Unrealized loss on investments - - - - - (103)
Ammdzalion of deferred stock compensation - -
Net income - - - - 2,046 -

Balance, December 31,2002 36,444 36 183,668 (200) (96,026)1 (156)
Exercise of stock options 69 1 68 - - -
Notereceivable from stockholder - - 200 - -
WarrenBissuedwith SeniorSmuNNote - - 20.004 - - -
Issusnce of shares under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan 78 - 38 - - -
Reclassification of mlized gain can sale of
investments - - - - - 156
Deferred stock compensation - - 683 - - -
Amortization of deferred stock compensation - - - - - -
No lms - - - - (15750) -

Balance,December31,2003 36,591 37 204,461 - (111,276) -
Exercise of stock options 86 - 40 - - -
Issuance of shares under Employee Stock
Push. Plan 115 - 110 - - -
Unrealized loss on investments - - - - - (114)
Amortization of deferred stock compensation
and other - - 8 - - -
Deferred financing ices - - (79) - - -Netlow - - -- - (75,033) --

Balsam December 31,2004 36,792 S 37 $204,540 S - $(186,309) 5(114)
r a~ amp aa~

Balance . December 31,2001 5(190) S 85,071
Exercise ofstock options - 17
Issuance of shares under Employee Stock Purchase Plan - 101
Unrealized Ion on investments - (103)
Amortization of deferred stock compensation 104 104
Net income - 2,046

Balarrcq December 31, 2002 (86) 97,236
Exercise ofstock options - 69
Note receivable from stockholder - 200
Warrants issued with Senior Secured Note - 20,004
Issuance of shares under Employee Stock Purchase Plan - 38
Reclassification of real'ved gain on sale of investments - 156
Deferred stock compensation (683) -
Amortization of deferred stock compensation I l I I
Net lms - (15,250)

Balance, December 31, 2003 (758) 92,464



See notes to the consolidated financial statements .
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Exercise of stock options 40
Issuance of slimes undarErnployce Snick PmshncPlan 110
Unsealimd lop on mvesvnents (114)
Amortization ofdefened stock compensation and other 193 201
Deferred financing fees (79)
Net lop (75,033)

8atana,Decwnber31,2004 - S(565) S 17389
s_
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM,INC .

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
(In thousands)

Ytan Ended December 31,

2104 2003 202

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Not(lm)inmne $(75,033) $(15,250) S 2,046
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net Cash provided by
operating acfvitim:

Depreciation and amortization 32,565 44,000 4(1,350
Amortization of deferred financingcasts 703 434 693
Amortization ofdtacomton note payable 5,498 156 -
Asnuuation of deferred sloth coopertatim and other 200 11 104
Impairment of assets 54,898 - 16,621
Non-cash restructuring charges - - 3,408
Net loss (gain) on exttngdshment of debt - 3,689 (32.847)
Net loa on asset disposidom 1,055 30 131
Psavisioa far dvubtkl accamts (183) l92 (,008
Deferred income tax (barefil)provision - (5,246) 668
Other - - 1,148

Changes in operating assets; andliabilities, net of acquisitions:
(Increase) decrease in trade accounts receivable (4,772) 4,719 69
Decrease in income us, meeiveble - - 7,386
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and othercurrentassets (146) 1,106 (750)
Decrease in other assets 265 31 1.388
(Docreasr) in accaunu payable (414) (4,204) (1,478)
Increase (decrease) in scorned interest 744 (3,426) (1,624)
(Decease) increase in other accruedliabilities (2,604) . (7,828) 7,321

Nacash provided by operating activities 12.776 18,414 49,642

INVESTINGACTIVITIES :
Purchases of property and cquipmarl (7 .132) (4,980) (19,564)
(Purchases)redempbousofshorhtenninvestmerrts,net (10,615) 29365 (10,841)
Proceeds from disposal ofequipment 148 75 20
Casts of acquisitions, net of cash received (587) - -
Deposits associated with the enterprise cntomerbase sale 3,500 - -

Nacash (used in) provided by invosfng activities (14,686) 24,460 (30,205)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Paynwnt on sanercredit facility - - (10,000)
Proceeds from repaynwnl of note receivable from moddiolder - 200 -
Procceds frown borrowing undervole payable 3322 40,049 35
Repayment, on Fiber IRU - (4 .200) (13,040)
Repayments on notes payable (1,048) (59,015) (20,657)
Principal payments on capital Issues (2.668) (8,177) (6.752)
Payments for deferred financing costs (237) (5,205) (120)
ProceM, from the issuance of conuoon stack 149 SI 118

Netcash (used in) financing activities (482) (36,267) (50,416)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (2392) 6,607 (35,979)
CASHANDCASH EQUIVALENTS:

Beginning of yea, 34,657 28.050 64,029

End of yar S 32,265 3 34,657 S 28,050

SUPPLEMENTALDISCLOSURE OF CASHFLOW
INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest S 5,584 S 16,413 S 19,883
Income axes S - S 161 S 7

Non-cash Operating and Financing Activities :
Prepaid maintenance agme nent financed byroles payable S 1,624 S - 3 -
Capitalind interest on Senior SecuredNote S 634 S - $ -

Non-cash Investingand Financing Activities:
Equipment acquisitions financed by noses payable S 2,075 $ - S -
Equipment acquisitions on capital lease obligation S 1,376 S 765 3 -



Seenotes to theconsolidated financial statements .
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles ofConsofldaoon

PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31 ;2004

Description ofBus4ness
Pae-West Telecomm, Inc . (the Company) has evolved into a high-value, independent provider ofintegrated communications

solutions that enable communication providers to use our network and services as an alternative to building and maintaining their own
network . The Company's customers include Internet service providers, enhanced communications service provid¢s (ESPs) and other
direct providers of communication services to business or residential end-users, collectively referred m as service providers, or SPs .
In response to our changing business model, on March 11, 2005, we sold the majority ofour enterprise customer base to
U.S . TelePacifie Corp . (TelcPacific) while retaining our associated network assets . Under the terms ofthis transaction, TelcPacific
acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities associated with our Enterprise customers in exchange for $26.9 million in cash
(see Note I8) .

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts ofthe Company and its subsidiaries since the date of
acquisition . All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated .

CrWcalAccounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principlesgenerally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions .These assumptions effect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure ofcontingent assets and liabilities, and reported amounts ofrevenues and expenses :

Management considers the following accounting policies to be critical due to the estimation proem involved in their calculation :

" revenue recognition;

" provision for doubtful accounts receivable;

" estimated settlements ofdisputed billings; and

" impairment of long-lived assets .

By their nature, these judgments are subject to uncertainty . Thus, actual results could differ from estimates made and such
differences could be material.

Revenue Recognition. The Company recognizes revenue when :

" there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement ;

" delivery ofthe product or performance ofthe service has occurred ;

" the selling price is fixed and determinable; and

" collectibility is reasonably assured.

The Company recognizes revenues from service access agreements as the service is provided, except for intercarria compensation
fees paid by our intercarrier customers for completion of their customers' calls through our network, and access charges paid by
carriers for long distance traffic terminated mm our network . The rights ofcompetitive local exchange carriers (CLECs), to receive this
type ofcompensation is the subject ofmuncrous regulatory and legal challenges . Until this issue is ultimately resolved, the Company
will continue

F-8



Tabl of Men

PAC-WEST TELRCOMM" INC .

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

to recognize intercarrier compensation as revenue when the price becomes fixed and determinable and collectibility is reasonably
assured

Some Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers (ILECs) with which the Company has interconnection agreements had withheld
payments from amounts billed by the Company undertheir agreements . The process ofcollection of intarcarrier compensation can be
complex and subject to interpretation ofregulations and laws . This can lead to the requirement for negotiated settlements between the
Company and the ILEC where it agrees to accept a portion ofwhat it believes is owed to it. These settlements generally reflect the
mutual agreements ofboth parties that exist at the date ofthe settlement Settlements were entered into with ILECs whereby the
TLECs paid the Company an aggregate of$10.7 million in 2004,$5 .7 million in 2003 and S20 .6 million in 2002 . The settlements were
included in revenues .

Non-refundable up-front payments received for installation services, and related costs up to the amount ofrevenues, are
recognized as revenue and expense ratably over the term ofthe service contracts, generally 36 mordhs. Any costsin excess of
recognized revenues are expensed in the period incurred . As ofDecember 31, 2004, $1,199,000 ofinstallation payments received
were deferred and are included in deferred revenues and 5623,000 of associated costs were deferred and are included in other assets,
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets .

Provisionfor doubtful accounts receivable. The Company estimates the provision for doubtful accounts receivablebased upon the
following factors :

" historical collection experience ;

" customer delinquencies and bankruptcies ;

" information provided by the Company's customers;

" observance oftrends in the industry ; and

" other current economic conditions .

Past due balances over 30 days and over a specified amount are reviewed individually for collectibility. Amount balances am
charged off against the allowance after all means ofcollection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is remote.
Collection is due and payable either upon receipt or up to 30 days from the date of invoice .

Estimated settlementsfor disputed billings. During the ordinary course ofbusiness, the Company may be billed at incorrect rates
or for carrier traffic that management believes the Company is not responsible for. Accordingly, the Company will dispute the billing
with the vendor and withhold payment until the matter is resolved . The Company's current disputes are primarily related to incorrect
facility rates or incorrect billing elements the Company believes it is being charged. Management regularly reviews and monitors all
disputed items and records an accrual that represents what it believes itmay pay to settle the dispute. Although the Company
continues to actively try and expedite resolutions, often times the state public Utilities Commission becomes involved in the
arbitration ofthese agreements . This process is often lengthy and resolutions are often subject to appeal . As ofDecember 31, 2004, the
Company accrued approximately S 1 .3 million, representing managements best estimate of expected settlements ofdisputes currently
in negotiation. If resolutions to items in negotiation are favorable or unfavorable to management's estimations, the Company's reserve
for disputed items maybe subject to change .

Long-lived assets. In 2002, the Company adopted Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, "Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of LongLived Assets." The Company evaluates its long-lived assets if events orchanges in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount ofthese assets may not be fully recoverable. Recoverability ofassets to be held and
used is measured by comparing the carrying amount ofan asset to the potential undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by
the asset. If
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL . STATEMENTS-(Continued)

an asset is considered tobe 'unpaired, it is written down to its fairmarketvalue. This is assessed based on factors specific to the type of
assetIn assessing the recoverability of these assets, the Company must make assumptions regarding, among other things, estimated
future cash flows to determine the fair market value ofthe respective assets. If these estimates and the related assumptions change, the
Company maybe required to record additional impairment charges for these assets in the future . During the fourth quarter of 2004 and
the second quarter of2002, the Company recorded impairmentcharges of$54 .9 million and $16.6 million, respectively.

OtherSignifreantAmounting Policies

Rmlauhcatim. Certain prioryear amounts have been reclassified to conform with the cement year presentatirjn.

Fair Value ofFinancial Instruments. The carrying value of the Company's cash and cash equivalents, marketable debt and equity
securities, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their respective fair values due to the short-term nature ofthese
instruments . The fair value ofthe Senior Secured Note approximates the value on March 11, 2005 when the Company repaid this note.
The fair value of the Company's Senior Notes was based on a quotation from an investment bank as ofDecember }1, 2004 mA
upproxirtmatea their carrying value. The fair value ofthe Company's other notes payable are based on the borrowing noes currently
available to the Company forbank loans with similar terms and average maturities and approximate their carrying value .

CashEquimlents. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities ofthree months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Short Term Investments. All investments with a maturity of greater than three months at the date ofpurchase are accounted for
under SFAS No . 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt end Equity Securities." Although the Company's investment
portfolio only contains investments that are highly liquid and can be converted to cash at any time, the Company determines the
appropriate classification ofthe investment as a cash equivalent m an available-for-sale short-term investment based am the
anticipated maturity date at the time ofpurchase. The Company's investments are not subject m penalties for early terninations or
sales . All investments as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were classified as available-for-sale and carried at fair value. Gross realized
gains and losses were insignificant and included in interest income in the accompanyingconsolidated statements ofoperations.
Differences between cost and fair value (unrealized gains andlosses) are recorded as other comprehensive income (loss), a separate
component ofstockholders' equity.

Property andEquipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost and includes network and other communication equipment,
equipment under capital leases, office furniture, business software and computer equipment, vehicles, leasehold improvements, and
projects in progress. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance, which donot extend the useful life ofthe property and equipment and
purchases below $1,000, are charged to expense as incurred . Upon retiremrnt, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are
relieved from the consolidated financial statements . Gains and losses associated with dispositions and impairment ofproperty and
equipment am reflected as (income) loss on asset dispositions, net and impairment ofassets, respectively, in the accompanying
consolidated statements ofoperations. Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method . Estimated useful
lives range from 3 to 20 years.

Network expenses. Network expenses are comprised mainly of leased transport charges, usage charges for long distance and
intrastate calls and, to a lesser extent, intercarrier compensation the Company pays to other companies related to calls that originate
with a Pac-West customer and terminate on the network of an ILEC or other CLEC. The Company's leased transport charges include
the lease payments it incurs for the transmission facilities, or circuits, used to connect its customers to its switches and to connect to
ILEC and CLEC networks. Depreciation expense associated with the Company's switching equipment is included in
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements ofoperations. The Company does not include any significant employee
costs in network expenses .

Stock Based Compensation. The Company follows Accounting Principles Board OpinionNo. 25, "Accounting forStock issues to
Employees" for its stock based compensation plans . The Company has adopted the disclcsurronly provisions ofSEAS No. 123,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," to disclose pro forma information regarding options granted to its employees based on
specified valuation techniques that produce estimated compensation charges . The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model to drive theoretical fair value ofemployee stock option grants. These amounts have not been reflected in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations because no compensation arises when the prim ofthe employees' stock options equals the
market value ofthe underlying stock at the date of grant, as in theCompany's case, if compensation expense for the Company's
stock-based compensation plans had been determined in accordance with the fair value as prescribed in SFAS 123, the Company's net
(loss) income per share for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and2002 would have been as follows:

Income Taxes. The Company provides for income taxes under the asset and liability method ofaccounting fm income taxes .
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective income tax bases . Deferred tax assets and liabilities
arc measured using enacted tax rates expected to be applied to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled . The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of changes in tax rates is recognized in
income m the period that includes the enactment dates. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets when it is more
likely than not that some portion or all ofthe deferred tax asset will not be realized .

Accroab related to restructuring activities. In June 2002 and August 2001, the Company approved and announced restructuring
plans, which included, among other things, closing switch facilities in Colorado andUtah and consolidation of sales otfims. In order
to estimate rent expense related to these abandoned premises, the Company made certain assumptions including ; (1) the time period
over which the premises would remain vacant, (2) sublease terms, and (3) estimated sublease teats. In the case of the switching
facilities, no sublease income was estimated due to the specialized nature these facilities. If the Company is able to sublet or negotiate
an early termination penalty for its abandoned switch facility in Colorado, or is unable to sublet the sales offices within the estimated
tmefrdme and at estimated terms, the restructuring charge could be subject to change.
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Net (loss)inoomeasreported
Total stack-baudemployee compensation included in reported net

2004

Indian
per

5(75,033)

2003

In ttioonsids except
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5(15.250)

2003

S2,046

lomrmcame, me of tax 200 8 76
Total Hock-based employee cooyensation determined under the fair
value bmdsnediod (1,366) (1 ;299) (1,702)

Fro loran 5(76,199) 5(16,541) S 420
assic tact (loss) income per commonsham:

As reported S (2.05) S (0.42) $ 0.06
Pro forum S (2.08) S (0.45) S 0.01

Diluted net (loss) income percommon sham :
As vsporkd S (2 .05) S (0.42) S 0.06
I'm rom,a $ (2 .os) $ (0.45) S 0.01
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC .

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No . 123R, "Share-Based,Payment ." Among
other items, the standard requires the Company to recognize compensation cost for all share-based payments, in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations. Depending onthe model used to calculate stock-based compensation expense in the future and
other requirements ofSFASNo. 1231?, the pro forma disclosure in Note 10 may not be indicative ofthe stock-based compensation
expense that will be recognized in the Company's future financial statements . The new standard is effective for the fast period that
begins after June 15, 2005, and allows two different methods oftransition . The Company is currently evaluating the new standard and
models, which may be used to calculate future stock-based compensation expense .

	

I

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, "Exchanges ofNonmonetary Assets." SFAS No. 153 amends APB
Opinion 29, "Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions," to eliminate the exception for nomoonetary exchanges of similar productive
assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges ofnonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A
nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the futurecash flows ofthe entity are expected to change significantly as a result
ofthe exchange . APB Opinion 29 is based on the principle that exchanges ofnonmonetary assets should be measured based on fair
value ofthe assets exchanged . SFAS No . 153 is effective for nonmonetary exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after
June 15, 2005 . The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 153 will have a material impact on it financial position,
results ofoperations and cash flows .

In October 2004, the FASB issued Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No . 04-8 (EITF 04-8), "The EffectofContingently
Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share." EITF 04-8 addresses when contingently convertible instruments should be
included in diluted earnings per share . Contingent convertible instruments are instnuents that have embedded conversion features
that me contingently convertible or exercisable based on (a) a market price trigger or (b) multiple contingencies if one ofthe
contingencies is a market price trigger and the instrument can be converted orshare settled based on meeting the specified market
condition. The Task Force concluded that contingently convertible instruments should be included in diluted earnings per share (if
dilutive) regardless ofwhether the market price trigger has been met EITF 04-8 is effective for periods ending after December I5,
2004 . The adoption ofEM 04-8 did not have an impact on the Company's diluted earnings per share.

In Match 2004, the FASB issued EM 03-1, "The Meaning ofOther-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain
Investments." ETIT 03-1 includes new guidance for evaluating and recording impairmentlosses on debt and equity mstrmnents, as
well as new disclosure requirements for investments that we deemed to be temporarily impaired . The accounting guidance provided in
EM 03-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2004, while the disclosure requirements are effective for annual
periods ending after September 15, 2004 . The Company does not expect the adoption ofEITF 03-1 will have a material impact on its
financial position, results ofoperations and cash flows .

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), "Consolidation ofVariable Interest
Entities;" which addresses how a business enterprise should evaluate whether h has a controlling financial interest in an entity through
means other than voting rights and accordingly should consolidate the entity . The adoption ofFASB Interpretation No . 46 did not
have an impact on the Company as at December 31, 2004, the Company does not believe it had any VIE's for which this interpretation
would be applicable .

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No . 104, "Revenue Recognition," which codifies, revises and
rescinds certain sections of SAB No . 101, Revenue Recognition, in order to make this interpretive guidance consistent with current
authoritative accountingand auditing guidance and SEC

F-12



Tahk of Contents

2 . Investments

Commercial paper
Cash

PAC-WEST TELECOMM,INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

rules and regulations . The changes noted in SAH No . 104aidnot have a material effecton the Company's financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

Concentration ofCustomers andSuppliers

During2004 revenues from three customers accounted for 21.1%;17.6% and 3.9% ofrevenues . During 2003.them same three
customers accounted for 21.8%, 17.1% and 10.6% ofrevenues, respectively, and during 2002 accounted for 31 .5°/a 8.8% and 16.0%,
respectively. During each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 no other customer accounted for more than 10.0% of
total mvemtes . As ofDecember 31,2W accounts receivable from one customer representedmom than 104/u of trade accounts
receivable . In 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company's largest source ofoperating costs was also one ILEC which represented 40.3%,
37.3% and 32.4% ofthe Company's network expenses during the years ended 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The following table summarizes the Company's investments in securities at December 31, 2004 :

As of December 31, 2004, all ofthe contractual maturities of the Company's U.S . government agencies and commercial paperwe
re before. April I, 2005.

The following table summarizes the Company's investments in securities at December31, 2003 :

Unrealized

	

FairMarket
Cent

	

Lane; net

	

Value

(Dollars to thousands)
$27,702

	

$ -

	

527,702
6.955

Total cash and investments

	

$34,657

As ofDecember31, 2003, all ofthe contractual maturities ofthe Company's commercial paper were before February 28, 2004 .
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U .S . government agencies

Con

S 7,457

Unrealized
IosseSnet

(Dollars In thousands)
S -

Fair Market
Value

S 7,457
Com rtaxial paper 4,892 4,892
Corporate bonds 10,615 (114) 10,501

Total investnenls in securities 22,850
Cash 19,916

Total cash and investment 542,766

Reported u : .
Cash and cash equivalents $32,265
Shmrlenn investments 10.501

$42,766
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

3.

	

Property and Equipment

The following tables summarizethe Company's property andequipment,net at December 31, 2004 and 2003 :

The Company capitalizes interest on capital projects when the project involves considerable time to implement and major
expenditures. Such interest is capitalized as pan ofthe cost of the equipment and is amortized over the remaining life of the assets.
Interest is capitalized based on the Company's incremental borrowing rate during the period of asset construction. In 2004, 2003 and
2002, the Company capitalized $0,$65,000, and $967,000, respectively, ofinterest related to capital projects .

Depreciation and amortization ofproperty and equipment was $32.3 million, $43 .8 million and $40.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method based on
the following estimated useful lives :

Equipnmnt

	

3 to 7 years
Vehicles

	

5 years
Leasehold improvements

	

20 yamor life ofleaee, whichever is shorter

During the first quarter of2003, the Company changed its accounting estimates related m depreciation. The Company reduced the
useful life for phone equipment provided to customers and computer hardware from 5 years to 3 years and extended the useful life of
some leasehold improvements from 10 years to up to 20 years . As a result of the change, the Company incurred additional
depreciation in the first quarter, which increased net loss for the year ended December 31, 2003 by $1 .6 million or $0.04 per diluted
share.

The Company reclassified $1 .1 million related to a technology lease from depreciation expense to selling, general and
administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 . In management's opinion, the new classification more accurately
presents the nature ofthe related expense in the Company's income statement based on the underlying transaction .

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, in correction with the 2004 audit ofthe Company's year-end
financial statements, the Company tested its long-lived tangible and intangible assets m determine whether the carrying amounts of
such assetswere recoverable from future undiwounted cash flows . Primarily as a rosuh of ongoing price compression and recent
industry trends in the dial-up Internet access market, the Companyrecorded non-cash asset impairment charges of554.6 million for
its tangible assets. In
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Network and other communication equipment

2004

(Dollars In
$ 145,789

2007

thoonods)
S 187,001

Equipmensunderc*Wkaus 2,140 21,020
Offer furniture 2,608 2,623
Busintss software and mmpukr equipment 27,128 29,302
Vehicles 866 1 .300
Lemholdimprovements 16,596 21,992
Projecu in process 210 209

195,337 263,447
Ammuhteddepreciation andemortuaflon (151,924) (142,736)

property and equipment" net $ 43,413 S 121,211
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. perfuming the test, the Company determined that the total ofthe expected future undiscounted cash flows directly related to the
existing service potential ofthe assets were less than the carrying value ofthe assets ; therefore, an impairment charge was required.
The Company engaged a third party valuation specialist m assist in the evaluation of the fair value of its assets using a sales
comparison approach, as well as a replacement costapproach . The impairment charges represented the difference between the fair
value ofthe property and equipment and its carrying value and are included within impairment ofassets in the consolidated statements
ofoperations . As a result ofthe asset impairments, a new cost basis was established for those assets thatwere impaired. The new cost
basis resulted in a reduction ofgross property andequipmentend did not change the remaining estimated useful lives .

In accordance with the provisions ofSFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Asses" the Company tested its goodwill and
intangible assets for impairment The Company estimated fair value using a market compambles approach that resulted in goodwill
impairment charges of$0 .3 million during the fourth quarter of2004.

S.

	

Other Assets

Deferred financing costs consist primarily ofcapitalized amounts for underwriter fees, professional fees and other expenses related
to the issuance ofthe Company's debt. Amortization ofdeferred financing costs for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2(1(12 was $703,000, 5434,000 and $693,000, respectively, and is included in interest expense in the accompanying cmisalidatcd
statements ofoperations. During 2004, the Companyincurred an additional 5146,000 in deferred financing costs related to the Senior
Secured Note transaction with Deutsche Bank AG -New York and $100,D00 in deferred financing costs related to the secured
financing arrangement with Merrill Lynch Capital . During 2003 and 2002, the Companypurchased from holders of its Senior Notes
an aggregate of$59 .0 million and $54 .9 million principal amount of Senior Notes. In connection with these transactions, the Company
expensed $3.3 million ofdeferred financing costs associated with the Senior Notesredeemed . The Company also incurred additional
deferred financing costs of$5 .2 million in 2003 related m the issue of the Company's Senior Secured Note .

During 1999, the Company acquired lease rights ofadditional space in its Los Angeles facility . This amount is being amortized on
a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, which is 81 months . Amortization expense for this facility was 5216,000 for each year
ended 2004, 2003 and 2002, and is included in amortization expense in the accompanying consolidated statements ofoperations.

In May 2004, the Company completed an agreement for maintenance with Cisco Systems, Inc. A $1 .6 million note payable was
exchanged for a 36-month maintenance services agreement . This is included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in other
current assets, other assets, and other accrued liabilities . Additionally, the related expense is included in selling, general, and
administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations .
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At December 31, other assets consist ofthe following:

0cfamdfma,cingcosm

2004

(DollanIn
SLA3a

2003

thousands)
11,635

Acquisition of[me rights 379 594
t .on8-'tam pomon of defmed usmustion com 251 311
Prepaid maintenance 587 -
long-tam portion of inxi sid expensm and deposits 329 38
Intangible assets 81 -

52 .664 $2,578
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM,INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

A summary ofthe restructuring expenses and the associated remaining liability which is included in otheraccrued liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consist of the following:

The Company did not approve any new restructuring plan in 2004 and 2003 . The balances ofthe restructuring liabilities relate to
restructuring plans approved in June 2002 and August 2001 . The 2002 restructuring plan primarily provided for the closure ofthe
Company's switch facility in Colorado. The 2002 restructuring plan was in response to the further weakening ofthe economy,
additional competitive pressure from competitors who had reorganized and lowered theircost structure, overcapacity in the
Company's industry and lower demand from customers for its products and services.

The 2001 restructuring plan primarily provided for the suspension ofthe Company's expansion plans in certain states, exiting of
certain lower margin products and services (including residential resale and customer owned and maintained (COAM) equipment) and
undertaking certain cost reduction initiatives . In addition to restructuring certain product offerings, the restructuring initiatives
included closing the Company's switch facility in Utah, consolidation ofsix sales offices, and a workforce reduction ofapproximately
200 employees. The workforce reduction was completed during the fourth quarter, with all severance payments being made as of
December 31, 2001 . The 2001 restructuring plan was in response to a weakening economy and increasing competitive pressure
resulting from lower than expected demand for telecommunications services and overcapacity in the Company's industry,
management shifted the Company's strategy to margin inrprmement, cost containment and cash conservation rather than top-line
growth.

The amount ofthe reserve for vacated premises is equal to the monthly leasepayment of the unoccupied space, less any estimated
sublease income, multiplied by the remaining months on the lease. in regards to the Colorado facility, no sublease income was
estimated due to the specialized nature of this facility . During the second quarter of2004, the Companyrecorded additional
restructuring charges ofapproximately 5194.000 due to increased comma area operating expenses at the Colorado facility. This
amount was partially offset by reversals of $37,000 ofpreviously recorded restructuring charges related to the timing and amounts for
sublease income, primarily in San Diego. During the fourth quarter of2004, the Company recorded additional
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restructuringcharges ofS13,000 for an estimated increase in rent expense at theSan Diego and San Francisco office locations. During
the second and third quarters of2004, the Company recorded additional restructuring charges of approximately $228,000 and
$124,000, respectively, due to oar-going negotiations to the amount owed for circuit commitment obligations, which the Company
paid off during the third quarter of2004. During the third quarter of2004, the Company reversed 56,000 ofpreviously recorded
restructuring charges related primarily t professional fees that were anticipated but not incurred . The final cash payment to be
recorded against the restructuring reserve is currently expected to occur in Much2010 .

During 2003, the Company recorded additional restructuring charges of$206,000relating t office space in San Diego, California.
The amount of the reserve recorded is equal tthe monthly leasepayment ofthe unoccupied space multiplied by the remaining
months on the lease . Sub-lease incomewas not anticipated in 2003 primarily dueteconomic conditions. In addition, during 2003,
the Company reversed 581,000 of previously recorded restructuring charges relating tprofessional fees that werelanticipated but out
incurred .

During the secondquarter of 2002, the .Company recorded a 59 .3 million restructuring charge in connection with the closure of its
switch facility in Colorado. Ofthis amount, $3 .3 million related to the write-offofthe net book value ofleasehold improvements and
equipment which could not be redeployed to other locations and, in management's best estimate, had a fair marketralue of zero:
$2 .8 millioc related to circuit commaanvmctobligations ; and $32 million related to future rent payments due fortheiabandoned premise
in Colorado whichwill bepaid overthe lease term, which ends in fiscal year 2010 . In orderio estimate rent expense related tthis
premise, and those premises discussed in the following paragraph, the Company made certain assumptions including; (1) the time
period over which the premises would remain vacant, (2) sublease terms, and (3) estimated sublease rents. In the case ofthe Colorado
switching facility and the Utah switching facility, no sublease income was estimated due to the specialized nature ofthese facilities
and currant economic conditions . Accordingly, the Company believed the net book value ofthe leasehold improvements for the
facilities had a fair market value ofzero .

In the third quarter of2002, the Company recorded an additional restructuring charge of521,000, net representing the net
difference between the amount estimatedand the actual net book value ofimpaired leasehold improvements . In the fourth quarter of
2002, the Company reduced its restructuring accrual for future rentpayments for the Colorado switch facility by 50 .2 million as the
Company had touse the facility longer than anticipated due to a delay in transferring one of its customersmanother tamer. Asof
December 31, 2003, the Company had a remaining liability forthis restructuring activity ofapproximately S4 .1 million. This least
expires inMarch 2010 .

Inthe fourth quarter of2002, the Company negotiated andpaid an early terminationpenalty tsatisfy all future rent payments due
for its switch facility in Utah . Accordingly, the Company reversed previous charges of$0 .5 million to bring the accrual for this facility
tzero . As ofDecember 31, 2003, the Company had aremaining liability of50 .4 million for this restmeuuing reserve.
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At December 31, long-term debt and capital lease obligations consist ofthe following :

On December 19, 2003 the Company sold m Deutsche Bank AG-New York, acting through DB Advisors, LLC, as investment
advisor (Deutsche Bank), as investment advisor, in a private placement exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) ofthe
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, a senior secured note in the principal amount of$40.0 million, (the Senior Secured Note), and
warrants m purchase up to 26,666,667 shares of its common stock at an exercise price ofSI .50 per share . The Senior Secured Note

	

,
carries an interest rate ofLIBOR plus 0.5% (3 .02 0/. at December 31, 2004), and matures in December 2006 (See Note I8). The
maturity date ofthe Senior Secured Note will be automatically extended to coincide with any extension ofthe expiration date ofthe
warrants, which is extendable for up to anadditional 18 months at the option of Deutsche Bank. The Company allocated $18 .2 million
ofthe proceeds of the Senior Secured Note to debt and $21 .8 million to the warrants on the basis oftheir relative fair values. The
allocation ofproceeds representing the fair value ofthe warrants to additional paid-in capital creates a discount on the Senior Secumd
Note. Under the terms of the guaranty and security agreement related to the Senior Secured Note, the Company has granted Deutsche
Bank a security interest in substantially all of its assets and agreed to certain covenants including limitations on the Company's ability
to incur additional indebtedness, incur liens, sell assets and pay dividends. As ofDecember 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance
with these covenants.

Accrued interest on the Senior Secured Note is payable quarterly in cash, or at the Company's option, may be capitalized and
added to outstanding principal . In accordance with the terms ofthe Senior Secured Note, during 2004, the Company elected to
capitalize and add to the outstanding principal balance interest ofapproximately $0 .6 million, which is reflected as a non-cash
operating and financing activity in the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statement ofCash Flows . As ofDecember 31, 2004, the
principal balance was
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7 . Other Accrued Liabilities

At December 31, other accrued liabilities consist ofthe following:

2064

(DO111n in thousands)
Accrued restructuring charges S 2,464 5 4,542
Accrued payroll and reWed expenses 3,095 2,907
Recervepertnfutdstoeustotness 98 649
Oenenlliabilityinaumce 503 790
TelePacific Conanunications, trarnaction deposits 3500 -
Other 2,785 2,808

512,445 " '- 511,696

8. Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

Stake Notes

2004
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2003
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Senior Seemed Note, net of discount ofS16,134 24500 18369
Capital low obligartons 5x85 2,780
Notes Payable 6,040 69
Less current portion of noses payable and capital leases (2,889) (2,606)

$65,038 $54 .714
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$40:6 million, the balance ofthe discount was $16.1 million and the effective interest ratewas approximately 30%. During 2004 and
2003, the discount amortization was$5 .5 million and $0 .2 million, respectively. TheCompany has amortized the discount on in,
effective yield to maturity basis over the life ofthe note . Projected interest expense on this sec=d note (assuming that the note is held
to maturity, no interestpayments are defacedand the note is not extended afull 18 months) is asfollows :

The Senior Notes, ofwhich there is $36 .1 million in principal amount outstanding at December 31, 2004 and2003, met= on
February I, 2009 and bear interest at 13.5% per annum payable in semiannual installments, with all principal due i(1 full on
February 1, 2009. In December 2003, the Company repurchased $59.0 TnMic pr: .-rcipal amount ofSoniur Notes in a render offer. In
2002 the Company paid approximately $20.7 million to repurchase $54.9 million principal amount ofSeniorNote. These transactions
resulted in a loss (gain) (net ofthe write-off ofrelated capitalized debt issuance costs and costs paid to outside parties to complete the
transaction) of$3 .7 million and $(33 .8) million in 2003 and 2002 respectively.

In conjunction with the December 2003 tender offer for Senior Notes the Company also solicited consents to effect certain
proposed amendments to the indent= governing the Senior Notes. These amendments m the indent= governing the Senior Notes,
which am now effective, eliminated most ofthe indenture's principal restrictive covenants and amended certain other provisions
contained in the indenture. As ofDecember 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with these covenants .

During the second quarter of2004, the Company entered into a secured financing arrangement with Merrill Lynch Capital, a
division of Merrill Lynch Business Financial Services, Inc., pursuant to which the Company may borrow up m an aggregate amount of
$10.0 million, subject to certain conditions. This financing arrangement is structured in anmnnerthat provides for multiple credit
facilities up to an aggregate of$10 .0 million with each facility having separate closing dates and repayment schedules . This secured
financing arrangement expired on December 31, 2004. The principal and seemed interest ofeach facility shall be payable in 36 equal
monthly installments . The Company has the option to prepay the outstanding facility after 18 months subject to a maximum premium
of 3% ofthe outstanding facility . Interest on each facility will be fixed at 5%plus the 3-year swap rate, as published by Bloomberg
Professional Services, determined two business days prior to the closing date ofeach facility . The Company used the proceeds of this
financing arrangement to acquire new telecommunication switch and related equipment, which secure borrowings underthis financing
arrangement

As ofDecember 31, 2004, the Company had borrowed approximately $5.4 million under the Merrill Lynch Capital financing
atrangenaent under two credit facilities both with interest rates of 8 .6°h . As ofDecember 31, 2004,the principal balance was
$4.7 million and is included under Notes Payable in the above table . In July 2004, approximately $2 .1 million of these borrowings was
paid directly to a vendor by Merrill Lynch Capital foran equipment acquisition and is reflectedanthe Company's Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.a s a non-cash investing and financing activity.

In May 2004, the Company completed financing agreements for various network equipment with Cisco Systems, Inc. These
financing agreements were comprised of$1 .4 million ofequipment capital leases and a $1 .6 million note payable exchanged for a
36-month maintenance services agreement . These transactions are reflected on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows as a non-cash investing and financing activity, and a norrcash operating and financing activity . As ofDecember 31,
2004, the principal balance ofthe capital lease was $1 .1 million and is included underCapital lease obligations in the above table .
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$16,132



As of December 31, 2004, the balance of the note payable was $1 .3 million midis included underNotes Payable in the above table .

Duringthe third quarter of2003, the Company leased $0 .8 million of equipment over a period of24 months. This transaction is
reflected on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statement ofCash Flows as a non-cash investing and financing activity. As of
December 31, 2004, the principal balance was $0.2 million and is included under Capital lease obligations in the above table.

As ofDecember 31, 2004, future obligations related to Senior Notes, Senior Secured Note, Notes Payable (collectively Notes) and
capital leases are as follows (projected interest on the Senior Secured Note was based on the interest rate at December 31, 2004 and
not added to the outstanding principal) :
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Operating Leases
The Company currently leases and operates sevenprincipal facilities under non-cancelable operating leases as follows :

Facility

	

Lease Expintim

Stockton, California

	

Jim2006
Stockton, California

	

September 2007
Oakland. California

	

November 2008
Ira Angeles, California

	

Stptember2006
Las Vegas, Nevada October 2009
Seattle . Washington

	

December 2009
Phoenix, Arizona

	

April 2010

The Stockton lease expiring in June 2006 has three two-year renewal options remaining and the other facility leases contain two
five-year renewal options, except for Oakland, which has one five-year renewal option . The Company also leases telephone
equipment sites and telephone circuits on month-to-month, annual and long-term non-cancelable leases . As the Company's leased
telephone circuit commitments are fulfilled, the leases convert to month-to-month agreements. Management of the Company expects
that these leases will be renewed or replaced, as necessary, by other leases in the normal course ofbusiness .
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2006 33,204 520
-2007 - - - 6,281 173

2008 4,876
2009 36,508

Total minimum note and lean payments 89,574 1,440
less: portion representing interest (22,932) (155)

Present rehte of net minimum note and lase Payments 66,642 1,285
Las :- short-term portion (2,255) (634)

Nola and capital lease obligations, long-term portion 5 64,387 5 651
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The Company's restructuring programs, one approved and inmincedin the third quarter of2001 and the other in the second
quarter of 2002, included closing the Company's switch facilities in Utah and Colorado and the consolidation of six Sales offices. All
ofthese leases, except for the Colorado switch facility and two ofthe sates offices, have bees terminated . The Company is subleasing
both ofthe sales offices andcontinues to actively search for tenants to sublease the Colorado switch facility. Including the leases for
the abandoned premises that the Company has not yet terminated less any sublease agreements in place, the Company's future
minimum lease payments with initial terms in excess ofone year as ofDecember 31, 2004, are as follows :

DS" in thounada)
S 6,682

3,1

Rental expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, for operating leases for space,
excluding amounts charged against the restructuring liability, was $3 .5 million, $3.5 million and $4.0 million, respectively. Rent
expense is included in selling, general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements ofoperatims. The
Company expects to receive sublease income ofapproximately $0 .2 million during 2005. Rental expense charged to operations for
telephone circuits ofapproximately $30.0 million, $352 million and 540 .4 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively, is included in network expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements ofoperations . Rental expense paid
m related parties was approximately $0.4 million, $0 .3 million and $0 .3 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

EmploymentAgreements

At December 31, 2004 the Company had the following employment agreements in place:

" an agreement with its Vice President and Founder created in 2004 . This agreement provided for, among other things, a minimum
annual base salary, fees based on services provided, benefits to be received, andjob responsibilities;

" an agreement with its current President and ChiefExecutive Officer created in 2003 . This agreement provided for, among other
things, romimum annual base salaries, bonus entitlements upon the achievement ofcertain objectives, and the issuance ofstock
options;

" agreements regarding compensation and change in control with all ofthe Company's executive officers . These agreements
provide fora lump sum payment equal to 1500/a ofthe executive's base salary, health plan benefits, and option treatment in the
event ofa merger or combination of the Company into another entity, or the sale m disposition ofall, or substantially all, ofthe
Company's assets; and

" an agreement with its current chairman and former chiefexecutive officer, which provides for a minimum annual compensation
level and other benefits.
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Thetotal annual value ofthe minimum bast salary compensation for theagreements noted above is approximatelySO.S million.

Other

From time to time, the Company is subject to audits with various tax authorities that rinse during the normal course ofbusiness .
The Company believes resolutions to various tax audits that the Company may be involved within the normal course ofbusiness, will
not materially harm its business, financial condition or results of operations .

Intercarrier Compensation and LegalProceedings

Amounts billed to TLECs and payments withheld by ILECs during each of the three years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 are as follows :

The Company has established interconnection agreements (ICAS) with certain ILECS. The Telecommunications Act of 1996
requires ILECs to enter into ICAS with CLECs, such as the Company, and othercompetitors and requires state Public Utilities
Commissions (PUCs) to arbitrate such agreements if the parties cannot reach agreement . The ICAS govern, among other items,
intercarrier compensation agreements for the exchange of local and local toll calls between the parties.

On March 29, 2002, SBC California (SBC) filed a Petition for Arbitration with the California Public Utilities Commission
(CPUC) with respect to its ICA with the Company, which would replace the similar agreement that expired inJune of2001, but which
was to continue in effect until replaced . On May 8, 2003, the CPUC announced its decision to adopt a modified alternate proposal of
the ICA submitted by SBC. The new three-year agreement establishes the rules under which the Company and SBC can interconnect
their networks to allow for the exchange oftraffic, and the recovery of costs associated with exchanging such traffic . The ICA also
recognizes that SBCmay implement the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Intercarrier Internet Service Provider ((SP)
order, which creates separate interearrier compensation arrangements, including rates, terns and conditions, for"presumed
ISP-bound" traffic . The Company has disputed SBC's implementation of the FCC plan .The Company and SEC settled the disputes
in July 2004.

The terms ofthe ICA also intent the Company to mo dify its existing network in order to avoid new transport charges imposed by
SBC . Such network modifications causeadditional costs onboth an ongoing and one-time basis. The agreement also authorizes the
Company to charge tandem switching and transport where appropriate.

On June 12, 2002, Verizon California (Verizon) filed a Petition for Arbitration with the CPUC with respect to its ICA with the
Company, that would replace the similar agreement which expired inApril of2002, but continued in effect until replaced pursuant to
an order ofthe CPUC . On June 2, 2003, the Company
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filed with the CPUC the new ICA with Vorizon which resulted from the arbitraiion. Thenew three-yearagreement establishes the
rules under which the Company and Verizon can interconnect their networks to allow for the exchange oftraffic and the recovery of
costs associated with exchanging such traffic . In addition it includes a new transport charge applicable to certain traffic and makes the
intercarricr compensation rates established by the FCC Plan effective upon the commencementofthe termofthe new agreement . The
terms ofthe agreement also incept the Company to modify its existing network. Such network modifications causq additional costs to
the Company on both an ongoing and one-time basis . The agreement also authorizes the Companyto charge tandem switching and
transport where appropriate.

In July 2003 Verizon appealed the arbitration decision ofthe CI'UCto Federal District Court, arguing among other things that the
FCC Plan rates should have been made retroactive . The Company has opposed the relief sought by Verizon, and has challenged the
legality ofthenew transport charges imposed on certain traffic.

	

I

Thecompany cannot predict the outcome offuture CFUC proceedings, future appeals or additional pending cases involving
related issues, or ofthe applicability of such proceedings to its ICA with these two or other ILECs. As a result, no assurance can be
given that the Company will continue to collect interearrier compensation, which represents a significant portion of its revenues, in the
future, or that additional charges may not be imposed upon the Company under such agreements m the future . ISPII cur..ntiv form a
significant part ofthe Company's customer base in California and adverse decisions in these or related FCC proceedings could limit
its ability to serve this group ofcustomers profitably and mayhave a material adverse effect on us .

Other LegalProceedings

On December 6, 2001, a complaint captioned Krim vs Pac-WestTelecomm, Inc ., et M., Civil Action No . 01-CV-11217, was
filed in United States District Court for the Southern District ofNew York against the Company, certain executive officers, and
various underwriters in connection with the Company's initial public offering . An amended complaint was filed on April 19, 2002 .
The plaintiffs allege that the Company and its officers failed to disclose alleged aliocations of shares of the Company's common stock
in exchange for excessive brokerage commissions or agreements topurchase shares at higher prices in the aftemrarket, in violation of
Section I 1 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 . Substantially similar actions have
been filed concerning the initial public offerings formore than 300 different issuers, and the cases have been coordinated as In re
Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, 21 MC 92. The complaint against the Company seeks unspecified damages on behalf of a
purported class ofpurchasers of its common stock. In October 2002, the executive officers ofthe Company were dismissed from the
action without prejudice by agreement with the plaintiffs which also resulted in tolling ofthe statute oflimitations . The court
dismissed the Section 10(b) claim against the Company in 2002 .

On July 10, 2003, a committeeoftheCompany's board ofdirectors conditionally approved a proposed settlement with the
plaintiffs in this matter. The settlement would provide, among other things, a release ofthe Company and ofthe individual defendants
for the conduct alleged in the action to be wrongful in the plaintiffs complaint The Company would agree to undertake other
responsibilities under the settlement, including agreeing to assign away, not assert, or release certain potential claims the Company
may have against its underwriters . Any direct financial impact ofthe proposed settlement is expected to be bome by the Company's
insurers who participated in the negotiation of the settlement together with insurers representing other issuers in the class action case .
The committee agreed to approve the settlement subject to a number ofconditions, including the participation ofa substantial number
of other issuer defendants in the proposed settlement, the consent of the Company's insurers to the settlement, and the completion of
acceptable final settlement documentation Furthermore, the settlement is subject to a hearing on fairness and approval by the court
overseeingthe litigation.
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From time totime, the Company is a party to litigation that arises in the ordinary course ofbusiness. TheCompany believes that
the resolution of this litigation, and any other litigation the Company may be involved with in the ordinary course ofbusiness, will not
materially harm its business, financial condition or results of operations.

Stock Options
In January 1999, the Company's Board ofDirectors approved the terms ofthe 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (the "Plan") which

authorizes the granting ofstock options, including restricted stock, stock appreciation rights, dividend equivalent rights, performance
units, performance shares or other similar rights or benefits to employees, directors, consultants and advisors. Options granted under
the Plan have a term often years and substantially all options vest ratably over a four year period . In addition, options have been
granted to two senior. officers (both ofwhom are no longer officers) pursuant to the 1998 Griffin and BrysonNon-Qualified Stock
Incentive Plans. In May 2000 the Board ofDirectors approved the 2000 Napa. Valley Non-Qualified Stock Incentive Plan . At
December 31, 2004 the Company had approximately 0.4 million shares available for grant underthese incentive plans.

In November 2001 the Company offered to exchange options that were previously issued . As a result, in December 2001 the
Company canceled 831,638 options and issued new options to eligible employees on June 18, 2002 .

A summary of the status ofthe Company's stock option plans at December 31, 2004 and changes during the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 is presented in the table below.
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Wekbtw
Average
Ezeretae

Sham Fri.

an thousands except
exercise price)

Balance, December 31, 2001
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

3,879
1,395
(223)
(492)

$3.06
0 .46
0 .48
4 .62

Balance, December 3I, 2002 4,559 212
Granted 990 1 .13
Exemsed (69) 0 .49
Cancelled (532) 3 .95

Balance, Dwmber31 .2003 4,949 - 1 .54
Granted 372 1 .63
Exercised (86) 0.47
Qncelled (165) 2 .93

Balance, December 31, 20W 5,069 1 .81
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Options outstanding, exercisable and vested by price range at December31, 2004 are as follows :

Weighted

S

As ofDecember 31, 2003, the numberofoptions outstanding that were vested and exercisable was 3,144,119. These options had a
weighted average exercise price of$2.19 . As of December31, 2002, the number ofoptions outstanding thatwere vested and
exercisable was 2,192,502 . These options had a weighted average exercise price of52.70.

In October 2003, theCompany amrnded certain terms, including the extension ofthe post termination exercise period, of
previously issued options to a current officer and to a former officer and current director ofthe Company. Upon separation,
incremental compensation cost of$1 .4 million related to each ofthe options held by both the chairman of the board and the chief
executive officer, would be recognized over the remaining future service period of such awards.

Pro Forma Fair Value Informadon

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to derive the theoretical fair value ofemployee stock option grants .

The fair value ofeach option was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions :
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Rangeaf
Exercise Price

Weighted
Average

Remeipiae
Number Contractual

Outstanding Life

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Pries

Number
Vested
And

Exercisable

Average
Exercise
priceof
Opnom

Exercisable

(Sharer In thousands)
027- 028 142 7 .7 S 028 69 $ 028
0.41- 0.60 1,613 6.9 0.50 1,145 0 .49
0.66-0.% 1,224 7.1 0 .79 1,077 0.79
1 .00- 1 .48 131 9.1 123 24 1 .22
159- 2 .37 1,02E 61 2 .12 708 2 .13
2.53- 3.50 397 6.6 2 .74 299 2 .79
4 .06- 429 325 4 .D6 324 4.06
615- 9 .13 13 5.8 7 .68 11 7.87

10.00-14 .75 143 4 .9 10.14 143 10.14
17.50-25 .13 49 5 .4 18 .66 49 18.66
3125-35 .00 4 5,2 33 .83 4 - 33.83

0 .27-35.00 5,069 6 .7 1 .81 3,853 2.00

2004 2003 2002

Risk-fire interest rate 295Y. 2.58% 339%
Expected volatility 110% 108% 100%
Expected dividend yield - - -
Expocted lift 4 years 4 years 4 yews
Fair valueof options gmned S 123 S 0.83 S 0.33
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

The Company established the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan . (the Purchase Plan) under which one million sham ofcommon
stock have been reserved for issuance . Full-time employees may designate up to 10% of their compensation, not toexceed
1000 shares each six-month period, or $25,000 worth of common stock in any rate calendar year, which is deducted each pay period
for the purchase ofcommon stock under the Purchase Plan. On the last business day ofeach six-month period, sham of common
stock are purchased with the employees' payroll deductions at 85% ofthe lesser ofthe market price on the first or last day ofthe
six-month period. The Purchase Plan will terminate no later thanMay2, 2020 . During 2004 end 2003, a total of 115,359 and
77,751 shares ofcommon stock with a weighted average fair value of31 .12 and $0.62per share werepurchased . At December 31,
2004, 579,695 shares remained available for issuance . Pro forma compensation cost has beencomputed forthe fair value ofthe
employees' purchase rights, whichwas estimated using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions : expected dividend
yields of D% for 2004, 2003 and 2002 ; expected life of0.5 years for2004, 2003 and2002; expected volatility of 84*/u for 2004,
123 .0% for 2003 and 100.0% for 2002 (based on the volatility period of thepurchase plan); and ris"m interest rates of 1.5% for
2004, 1 .1% for 2003 and 1 .8% for 2002. The weighted-average fair value ofthose purchase rights granted in 2004, 2003 and 2002 ;
was 50.47, $0.29 and 5020, respectively.

Performance UnitAwards

In December 2003, the Company granted its President and ChiefExecutive Officer (the CEO) the right to receive performance
unit awards over400,000 shares ofcommon stock (before any saock split, reverse stock split or stock dividend) under an employment
agreement. Under the agreement, 200,000 performance unit awards shall become vested provided the CEO remains employed by the
Company through June 30, 2007 or in the event ofa change in control as defined in the Company's 1999 Stock Incentive Plan . In
addition, the remaining 200,000 performance unit awards will vest provided that the CEO remains employed by the Company through
June 30, 2008 or in the event ofa change in control as defined in the Company's 1999 Stock Incentive Plan . The agreement provides
for accelerated vesting in the event that the monthly average fair market value ofthe Company's common stock is greater than or
equal to $3 .00 per common sham for a period of six consecutive calendar months commencing on mafter January l, 2004.

The Company recorded additional paid in capital and deferred stock compensation of5768,000 (based. on the Company's share
price ofS 1 .92) on the date ofthese performance milts were awarded . The expected cost ofthese shares will be reflected in income on
a straight line basis ova the performance period. Assuming these is no accelerated vesting of the awards the expense for 2005 is
projected to be 50 .2 million This will be included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

Stock Warrants

On December 19, 2003 the Company sold to Deutsche Bank (the Transaction) the Senior Secured Note.This Transaction
provided, among other things, that the Company issue stockwarrants to purchase up to 26,666,667 sham of its common stock at an
exercise price of SI .50 per share . See note 8 for more information. The fair value of the warrants was estimated using the
Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions as of the Transaction date : expected dividend yield of0%; expected life of
three-years ; expected volatility of 135°/x ; and risk-firm interest rate of 0.8% . The fair value of the warrants was $10 .5 million on the
date of the Transaction, and the relative fair value was 521 .8 million (see Note 18).

Adjustment to chairman's and executives' options

On August 17, 2004, the Company amended the term ofoption grants previously awarded to its executives, including : Wayne
Bell, Vice President Sales and Marketing ; H . Ravi Brar, Chief Financial Officer and Vice PresidentofHuman Resources ; Michael
Hawn, Via President Costomer Network Services; and
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John Sumpter, Vice President Regulatory . The amendmenens to the terms of the option grants previously awarded to each ofthe
executives provided for :

-immediate vesting of all unvested stock options held by the executive in the event the executive is demotedoremployment is
involuntarily terminated by the Company or a successor without cause atany time during a twentyrone month period beginning
nine months priorto the effective date of a possibility ofa future change in control and;

" extension ofthe post termination period to exercise such option grants from 90 days to 365 days following termination of
executive's employment. The total number ofoption grants previously awarded and amended was 824,000 and the total pro
forma incremental compensation expense based upon the intrinsic value ofthe option grants previously awarded to the offmcas
was S117,350 on August 17, 2004 .

Upon a triggering event as defined by the amendment, the Company will record incremental compensation cost related to each of
the option grants awarded to the officers. Therewas no compensation expenserecorded as ofDecember 31, 2004 .

In October 2003 the Company amended the term of options previously granted to its chairmanend also :o c chief executive
ofl5cu. iuese amendments provided:

	

i

" in the case ofthe Company's chairman, the modification provided for (a) accelerated vesting such that each option shall be fully
vested and exercisable upon termination of employmentperiod under his employment agreementotherthan resignation without
good cause or termination for cause and (b) to extend post termination exercise period such that it expires on theexpiration date
ofeach grant which ranges from September 2008 to December 2011 . On the modification date, the Company'schairman held
options to purchase 1,095,694 shares ofCompany common stock, which bad a weighted averageexercise prim of52.49 per
share and the Company's stock price was 52 .60 per share. As The Company calculated incremental compensation expense of
$1 .4 million based upon the intrinsic value on the modification date . As there was no separation event as ofDecember 31, 2004,
there is no compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statement ofoperations for theyear ended December 31, 2004
and;

" in the case of the Company's chiefexecutive officer, the amendment provided for (a) accelerated vesting such that each option
shall be fully vested and exercisable upon termination ofemployment period under his employment agreementother than
resignation without good cause or termination for cause and (b) to extend post termination exercise period such that it expires on
the expiration date ofeach grant which ranges from June 2011 to December 2012 . On the modification date, theCompany's
chiefexecutive officer held options to purchase 500,000 shares ofour common stock, which had a weighted average exercise
price ofS 1.43 per share and the Company's stock prim was $4 .31 pershare. The Company calculated incremental compensation
expense ofS1 .4 million based upon the intrinsic value on the modification date. As there was no separation event as of
December 31, 2004, there is no compensation expense recognized in the accomp anying consolidated statement of operations for
the year ended December 31, 2004 .

II .

	

Income (Loss) Per Share
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, potential common stock was antidilutive, es it decreased the net loss per share.

Accordingly, 1,910,000 and 1,265,000 shares were excluded from the diluted
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. net loss per share calculation for 2004 and 2003, respectively. Diluted net (loss) income per share information forthe years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

12, IncomeTaxes
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2904 2063 2602

(Dam In thousands except per share
amounts)

Net(loss) income

Weighted averageshares outstanding-basic
Efratof dilutive securities

Weighted averageshares outsmnding-diluted

Net(loss)income pershare-basic and diluted

The (benefit from) provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 consists ofthe following:

The Company's (benefit from) provision for income tax differed from the amotmt computed by applying the statutory federal
income tax rate to income before income taxes as follows:

Income taxdetermined by applying themtutory

2004

Amount Rate Amount

(Dollan 1.

2003

Rau

thousand .)

2002

Amount Rate

federal income tax rate to (loss) income before
income uses S(26,261) (35.0)% S(7,613) (35.0)% 5 977 35 .0%.
Senseincome taxes, net of federal income tax
benefit (3,949) (5 .3) (1,030) (4 .7) 339 121
Non-dedwtibk smmGmbon of costs in acres of
netassets ofacquired businesses - - - - - -
Nondeductible goodwill impainnens - - - - -
Valuation allowance 30,156 401 1,940 8.9 - -
Changes inreurves - - 19 0.1 22 0.1
Other 54 03 184 0.8 (593) (20.61

(Benefit 6om) provision fm income taxes $ - --% S(6,500) (29.9)% 5 745 26.7%
.annal' sssan Manna,

Current
Federal

2004 2003 2002

(Dollars is thousands)

S - S (909) S -
state - (305) 77

Deferred :
Federal - (3,966) 223
SCde - (1,280) 445

S - 5(6.500) $745
VIEW

S(75,033) S(15,250) S 2,046

36,655 36,481 36108
- - 26

36,655 36,481 36,334

S (2.05) S (0 .42) S 0.06
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PAC-WESTTELECOMM, INC.

Management has established a valuation allowance for the portion of deferred tax assets for which realization is uncertain . The net
change in the total valuation allowance for the year ended December 31, 2004 was an increase of$30 .2 million . The net change in the
total valuation allowance for the year ended December 31, 2003 was an increase ofS 1 .9 million .

As of December 31, 2004 the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for Federal and state income tax purposes of
approximately 549.9 million and $28.0 million, respectively, available m reduce future income subject to income taxes. The Federal
net operating loss carryforwards expire beginning in 2021 through 2024. State net operating loss carryforwards expire in 2014.

As ofDecember 31, 2004, unused California Enterprise Zone tax credits of approximately S2 .0 million are available to reduce
future California income taxes . California Enterprize Zone tax credits carry forward indefinitely until utilized .

Federal and state laws impose substantial restrictions on the utilization ofnet operating loss and tax credit canyforwards in the
event ofan "ownership change," as defined in Section 382 ofthe Internal Revenue Code . The Company does not believe that its
utilization of net operating loss ca"yforwards and tax credit carryforwards should be significantly restricted .

Bay Alarm Company (BayAlarm)
Bay Alarm (astockholder ofthe Company) and its subsidiary, InReach Interact, LLC, are collectively a large customer of

telephone network services, comprising approximately 1 .3-A ofthe Company's revenues for
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The cumulative balance sheet effects ofdeferred tax items are:

Trade accounts receivable ailowances

2004

(Dolls" is
S 158

2803

thousands)
S 676

Deferred revenue 250 322
Vacation and other accrued eepenses 332 356
ResnuGUring and dher reserves 1,068 1,960
Inventory reaervea 66 84
Other reserves 174 252
Tu credits and loss earyforwardt 18,306 9.116
State taxes - 1,416
Basis difference an depreciable and anrurtiabk state.; 15,275 -

Deterred tax start 35,629 14,182

state tax= (663) -
Buis difference on depreciable and anoramble asses - (10,476)
Ptepsidexpensu (706) (101)
IRUrenals (2.164) (1,665)

Deferred tax liability (3,533) (12,242)

Net deferred taxMet 32 .096 1,940
Valualianallowance (32.096) (1,940)

Net deferred ux liability S - s -



Tahte of Contents

both the years ended December31, 2004 and 2003 . As ofDecember 31, 2004 and 2003 the Company had amounts receivable from
Bay Alarm of $0 and 58,000, respectively. These amounts ere included in trade accounts receivable, net in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

The Company leases a facility in Oakland from Bay Alarm . Rentspaid underthis leasewere $359,000, 5334,000 and $289,000 for
the years ended 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. BayAlarm provides the Company with security monitoring services at its normal
commercial rates. The Companyhas recorded an immaterial amount (less than $100,000) for these services in each ofthe years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and2002. All expenses paid to Bay Alarm are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations .

Notes Receivablefrom Stockholders

PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS-(Continued)

In 1998, a stockholder ofthe Company, who is also an officer, purchased 37,500 shares ofcommon stock from the Company for
$250,000. The Company received $50,000 in cash from the stockholder and entered into a note receivable for the remaining balance
of5200,000 . This amount was fully repaid in 2003 .

14 .

	

Retirement Plan :

The Company has a 401(k)-retirement plan (the Plan) for all full-time employees who have completed 90 days ofservice . The
plan year is from January I to December 31, and the Company contributes $0.50 for every S 1 .00 contributed by the employee, subject
to a limit of3 percent ofthe employee's salary. Participants become fully vested after six years, although they vest incrementally on
an annual basis after two years ofservice. The Company's matching contributions were S45 I,D00, $303,000 and $378,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These amounts are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements ofoperations.

15.

	

Segment Reporting

Based on criteria established by SPASNo. 131, "Disclosures about Segments ofan Enterprise and Related Information," the
Company has determined that it has tome reportable operating segment. While the Company's chief decision-maker monitors the
revenue streams ofvarious services, the revenue streams share many expenses such as leased transport charges and circuits. In
addition, operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated based uponthe delivery of multiple services ova common
networks and facilities. This allows the Company to leverage its costs in an effort to maximiu return. As a result, the revenue streams
share almost all of the various operating expenses . Because management believes thatmy allocation ofthe expenses to multiple
revenue streams would be impractical and arbitrary, management does not currently make such allocations internally. The chief
decision-maker does, however, monitor revenue streams at a more detailed level than those depicted in the Company's accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

F-30



Table of Contents

PAC-WEST TELECOMM,INC.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS- (Contrived)

The significant revenue components for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows :

16.

	

Unaudited Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data

Thefollowing is a summary of quarterly consolidated financial results for the fiscal years ending 2004, 2003 and 2002 .

The fourth quarter of2004 includes an impairment of assets charge of 554.9 million .

Thefirst quarter of 2002 includes a gain on extinguishment of debt of511 .9 million.

The second quarterof2002 includes a restructuring charge of$9 .3 million andan impairment of assets charge ofS7.2 million.

The third quarter of2002 includes a gain on extinguishment ofdebt ofS14.9 million.
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Manh31 Jaoe30

(Dollars to thoaands

September30

except per shin statement)

December3l

2004 :
Revenue S 29,423 1 27,837 331.652 S 35 .094
Gross marlin S 18,931 S 16,689 523,117 S 25 .435
Net Ins, S (7,165) 1 (9,105) 3(3,127) 3(55,636)
Net loss pershare :

Basicand Diluted S (0.20) S (0.25) S (0.08) S (1 .52)
2003 :

Revenue $ 30,515 S 45,723 330,312 $ 28,090
Gross margin S 19 .817 S 38,718 $21,483 3 18,336
Net income (low) 3(10 .324) S 9,171 1(4,314) 3 (9,783)
Net income Doss) per start :

_

Basic and Diluted 1 (0.28) 5 025 1 (0.12) $ (037)
2002 :

Revenue S 43,092 S 38,499 $34,201 5 48x06
times margin S 29,332 3 24,492 - $21,723 S 35,026
Ndincome (loss) $ 7,384 1(13,388) S 4,889 S 3,161
Net income (toss) per share :

Basic seat Diluted S 0.20 $ (0.37) 3 0.13 S 0.09

2004 2003 2002

(Dollanin thonamda)
Intemarricrcompensation $ 39,822 S 47,062 S 79912
Direct billings toSPmhaomrn 42,925 44,971 41,501
Direct billings m Enterprise customers 19526 17,337 12,861
Oesbound localstdI=9distance 11,409 12,706 13,236
Dedicated transport 4,277 5,573 8,942
Switchedacces 5,303 6,046 17,165
Other 744 945 477

S124,006 $134,W $164,098
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The fount quarter of 2002 includes a gain on extinguishmett ofdebt of S7 .0 million, an impairment of assets charge of
S9A million and in revenues a settlement for various disputes of$15 .8 million_

17.

	

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

During the first quarter of2004, the Company completed its acquisition of the assets and certain of the liabilities ofSentient
Group, Inc., a small provider offully hosted managed voice and data services for business eonmrunications. The acquisition has been
accounted for as a purchase and accordingly, the total estimated purchase price has been allocated to the tangible and intangible assets
acquired based on their respective fair values on the acquisition date. Intangible assets were recorded for the customer base in the
amount of$86,000 and is being amortized over 15 years . As ofDecember 31, 2004, the balance of these intangible assets were
$81,000 and ate recorded in other assets in the consolidated balance shat

The excess of the cash purchase price, $576,000, over the fair value oftangible and intangible net assets acquired was recorded as
Goodwill in the amountof5375,000 . As ofDecember 31, 2004, the balance ofgoodwill was reduced to It 19,00 as aresult of an
aasct impaimrent.

I8.

	

Subsequent Events

On March 11,205, the Company sold the majority of its enterprise customer base to U.S . TelePacific Corp. (TelePacific) whicc
retaining its associated network assets . Under the terms of this transaction, TelePacific acquired certain assets and assumed certain
liabilities associated with the enterprise customers in exchange for $26 .9 million in cash . In addition, the Company entered into a
transition service agreement with TelePacific that, among other things, obligates it to provide certain transition services to TelePacific
at its estimated cost, for a one-year period subject to extension for two additional three-month periods.

Pursuant to the terms ofthe Payoff Lamer (the "payoff LetteP'1 , by and between the Company and Deutsche Bank, the Company
utilized theproceeds from the sate o£ its enterprise customer base to TelePacific on March 11, 2005, as well as cash on hand to prepay
in full its Senior Secured Note (including all outstanding principal and accrued and unpaid interest), and retired the related warrants to
acquire up to 26,666,667 shams ofthe Company's common stock in connection with the Senior Secured Note.

On March 1 l, 2005, the Company determined that, in connection with the completion ofthe sale of the enterprise customer base, it
recorded net restructuring and othercharges ofapproximately $750,000, primarily consisting ofemployee separation costs for
employees previously associated with the enterprise customer base . Out ofthis amount, the Company anticipates that fiitute cash
expenditures associated with the separation plan will be approximately $300,000 . This separation plan will impact approximately 150
employees, the majority ofwhich were involuntary terminations . The Company anticipates that the majority ofthe employees
associated with this separation plan will leave their positions by the end of2005.
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Balance at

	

Charged to
Beginning of

	

Costs and

	

-

	

Balance at
Decription

	

Year Expease, Deductions EadoiVar

Allowance for doubtfulsccuunu

	

31,560

	

S(183)

	

51,011(1)

	

S366

Baboee at

	

Charged to
Begtanlugaf

	

Cosu and

	

Balance at
Description

	

year Expenaa Deductions EndofYar

Allowance for doubtful xsounu

	

11,660

	

$191

	

$392(1)

	

i

	

11,560

PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.

SCHEDULE 11-VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(Dollars in thousands)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

	

I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

13alanceat Charged to
Beginning of Cost, Rod Balsncea

Description Year Expenses Deductions End of Year

Allowance for doubtful arcounu $2,630 S 1,DD8 S 1,978(l) S1,660

Deductions represent write-offs .
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PAC-WEST TELECOMM, INC.
MANAGEMENT BIOGRAPHIES

Hank Carabelli
President and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Carabelli joined Pac-West as President and COO in June of 2001 . He joined the company's
Board of Directors in January of 2003 . In July of 2003, he was appointed Chief Executive
Officer with overall responsibility for the operations of the company. Formerly the COO of
ICG, a Colorado-based CLEC, and President of @Link Networks, a broadband service provider,
Mr. Carabelli brings over 28 years of telecom experience to Pac-West . He joined ICG in 1996 as
Executive Vice President of network operations, and served as COO from 1998 to 1999 with
responsibility over network engineering, customer care, sales, and installation . Prior to ICG, Mr.
Carabelli spent 19 years in management with Ameritech and Michigan Bell . Mr. Carabelli
serves on the Board of Directors for the San Joaquin Business Council, and the University of San
Francisco Telecommunications Advisory Board.

H. Ravi Brar
Chief Financial Officer and Vice President Human Resources
Mr. Brarjoined Pac-West in July 1999 as Vice President of Business Development . He was
appointed Vice President of Customer Operations in October of 2000, Vice President of Finance
and Treasurer in August of 2001, Acting Chief Financial Officer in February of 2002, and Chief
Financial Officer in September of 2002 and Vice President of Human Resources in 2004 . Mr.
Brar has responsibility for the Company's financial and accounting operations, evaluating
strategic growth opportunities, and human resources . Prior to joining Pac-West, Mr. Brar was
employed with Xerox Corporation from 1991 to 1999, where he held several senior level
business development and financial management positions, including Business Development
Manager of Developing Markets Operations in China and Russia, and Area General Manager
and Controller of Xerox's Business Services division in Pittsburgh, PA.

Todd M. Putnam
Chief Information Officer
Mr. Putnam joined Pac-West in October of 2003 as Chief Information Officer. Mr . Putnam has
responsibility over the Company's information systems including its Information Technology
strategic plan and infrastructure, including operating support systems, software development,
database administration, security, system integration, internal and external web sites, and
supplier partnerships . Prior to joining Pac-West, he completed a consulting assignment with
TechNexxus, LLC (a subsidiary of Mintz Levin Cohn Ferris Glovsky and Popeo PC) in
Washington D.C . From 1989 to 2002, he was employed with Global Crossing LTD (Frontier
Communications, ConferTech International, and T1 Systems), where he was responsible for
building, operating, and maintaining the global information systems infrastructure for the entire
company . He held a variety of senior level IT positions, including Vice President of Global IS
Operations, Vice President of North American Systems and Infrastructure, Vice President of
Systems Development, and CIO of the ConferTech division .



Michael B. Hawn
Vice President Customer Network Services
Mr. Hawn joined Pac-West as Vice President of Customer Network Services in August 2001 .
He has end-to-end responsibility over service delivery, maintenance, planning, engineering,
billing operations and reliability . He has over 18 years of telecommunications management
experience, including network planning, engineering, service delivery, provisioning, and
software development . His former positions include Vice President ofNational Operations and
Vice President of Program Management for @Link Networks, Inc . in Louisville, CO, Vice
President of Planning and Engineering for ICG Communications, Inc . in Englewood, CO, and
Technical Manager for Lucent Technologies' Regional Technical Assistance Center (RTAC) in
Lisle, IL and Cockeysville, MD .

Eric Jacobs
Vice President, General Manager
Service Provider Sales
Mr. Jacobs joined Pac-West in March of 2003 and was promoted to Vice President, General
Manager of Service Provider Markets in December 2003 . He has over ten years of sales
management experience in the communications industry . Prior to joining Pac-West, he held
positions as Director of Sales for Metromedia Fiber Network and Manager of Corporate
Accounts for Nextel Communications, Inc . Mr. Jacobs has leadership over the company's sales,
channel marketing and customer relations teams.

John F. Sumpter
Vice President Regulatory
Mr. Sumpter joined Pac-West as Vice President of Regulatory in July of 1999 . He is responsible
for Pac-West's relations with government regulatory agencies, regulatory compliance, and
intercarrier relations . Mr. Sumpter has over 30 years of experience in the telecommunications
industry . Prior to Pac-West, he was employed with AT&T from 1984-1999, where he held
several executive level regulatory and marketing positions, including Division Manager of Law
and Government Affairs, District Manager of Switched Services Product Management, and
District Manager of Marketing . He currently serves as Chairman of the Board of CALTEL, the
California Association of Competitive Telecommunications Companies and of CAGE, the
California Alliance for Consumer Education .

Peggy McGaw
Vice President of Finance
Ms. McGaw joined Pac-West in June of 2002 as Executive Director of Accounting and Finance
and was promoted to Vice President Finance in December of 2003 . Ms. McGaw has
responsibility over accounting, risk management, financial reporting and compliance, and tax
and treasury activities . Prior to joining Pac-West she served as CFO of the Dial.com from 1999
to 2002 . Prior positions included in her 20 years of finance experience are Vice President of
Finance and Acting CFO of Intracel Corporation and a Business Assurance Manager for
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP. Her extensive experience with technology-based companies
includes numerous capital raising and M&A transactions . Ms. McGaw is a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Financial Executives International and the
Forum for Women Entrepreneurs .



Robert C. Morrison
Vice President and General Counsel
Mr. Morrison joined Pac-West as Vice President and General Counsel in January of 2003 . He
served on Pac-West's Board of Directors from 2001 through December 31, 2002 . He has served
as our Corporate Secretary since February 2001 . Mr. Morrison has responsibility over corporate
governance, record keeping, documentation and legal administration of contractual relationships,
and managing the Company's relationships with outside law firms . Prior to joining Pac-West,
Mr. Morrison was an attorney with Neumiller and Beardslee, P .C . in Stockton, California from
1972-2002 . He served as Managing Director from 1983-1990 . In July of 2002, he completed a
term on the Board of Regents of the University of California . He is a past president of the
Greater Stockton Chamber of Commerce, the San Joaquin County Economic Development
Association, and the alumni association for UC Davis, and is a former member of the Board of
Directors and Executive Committee of the Lassen Volcanic National Park Foundation .
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LegalProceedings

On December 6, 2001, a complaint captioned Krim vs Pac-West Telecomm, Inc., et al ., Civil Action No. 01-CV-11217, was
filed in United States District Court for the Southern District ofNew York against the Company, certain executive officers, and
various underwriters in connection with our initial public offering. An amended complaint was filed on April 19, 2002. The plaintiffs
allege that the Company and its officers failed to disclose alleged allocations ofshares ofthe Company's common stock in exchange
for excessive brokerage commissions or agreements to purchase shares at higher prices in the aftermmket, in violation of Section I 1 of
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section I0(b) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 . Substantially similar actions,have been filed
concerning the initial public offerings for more than 300 different issuers, and the cases have been coordinated as In re Initial Public
Offering Securities Litigation, 21 MC 92. The complaint against the Company seeks unspecified damages on behalf of a purported
class ofpurchasers of its common stock. In October 2002, the executive officers ofthe Company were dismissed from the action
without prejudice by agreement with the plaintiffs, which also resulted in tolling ofthe statute oflimitations . The court dismissed the
Section I0(b) claim against the Company in 2002.

1
On July 10, 2003, a committee ofthe Company's board of directors conditionally approved a proposed settlement with the

plaintiffs in this matter. The setdement would provide, among other things, a release ofthe Company and of the individual defendants
for the conduct alleged in the action to be wrongful in the plaintiffs complaint. The Company would agree to undertake other
responsibilities under the settlement, including agreeing to assign away, not assert, or release certain potential claims the Company
may have against its underwriters. Any direct nnanciai impact ofthe proposed settlement is expected to be home dy the Company's
insurers who participated in the negotiation of the settlement together with insurers representing other issuers in thb class action case.
The committee agreed to approve the settlement subject to a number of conditions, including the participation of a substantial number
ofother issuer defendants in the proposed settlement, the consent ofthe Company's insurers to the settlement, and the completion of
acceptable final settlement documentation. Furthermore, the settlement is subject to a hearing on fairness and approval by the court
overseeing the litigation.

From time to time, the Company is a party to litigation that arises in the ordinary course ofbusiness. The Company believes that
the resolution of this litigation, and any other litigation the Company may be involved with in the ordinary course ofbusiness, will not
materially harm its business, financial condition orresults ofoperations .

In addition the Company is also a party to various legal proceedings relating to intercarrier compensation payment and other
interconnection agreement issues. These are discussed in more detail in "Business-Regulation" in item I to this form 10-K .

19



Table aContents

interconnect their networks to allow for the exchange oftraffic and the recovery ofcosts associated with exchanging such traffic . In
addition, like the SBC agreement, it includes a new transport charge applicable to VNXX Calls and makes the intetcarrier
compensation rates established by the FCC Plan effective upon the commencement ofthe term ofthe newagreement The terms ofthe
agreement also intent us to modify our existing network in order to avoid these transport charges. Such modifications have been
completed. We expect that intercarrier compensation will continue to represent a significant portion ofour revenues in the future
although, based on current market conditions, we expect the per minute intercarrier compensation rate will continue to decline from
historic rates under interconnection agreements in the future. Furthermore, the policies ofthe CPUC and other regulatorybodies are
subject to change with respect to issues, which affect the economic structure ofinterconnection agreements in other ways, and these
issues can differ from time to time .

Regulatory Legal Proceedings

In July 2003 Verizon appealed the arbitration decision of the CPUC to Federal District Court, arguing among other things that the
FCC Plan intercarrier compensation rates, which are contained in the new agreement but lower than the comparable rates in the
agreement being replaced, should have been made retroactive . We have opposed the relief sought by Verizon, and have challenged the
legality ofthe new transport charges imposed on VNXX traffic. It is not possible to determine the outcome ofthis proceeding at this
time.

Nevada RegulatoryProceedings and JudicialAppeals

In September 1999, Nevada Bell filed suit in U.S . Federal District Court in Reno to overturn a Public Utilities Commission of
Nevada decision requiring Nevada Bell to pay us intercarrier compensation for terminating traffic to Internet service providers. On
March 21, 2001, in ruling on cross-motions for summary judgment, the district court vacated the Public Utilities Commission of
Nevada decision and remanded the matter to the PublicUtilities Commission of Nevada with instructions to redo its analysis
regarding intercarrier compensation. We appealed this decision to the United States Court ofAppeals for the Ninth Circuit The Ninth
Circuit upheld the district court. and the matter have been remanded to the Public Utilities Commission ofNevada It is not possible to
determine the outcome ofthis proceeding at this time .

LocalRegulation

Our network is subject to numerous local regulations such as building codes and licensing requirements. Such regulations vary on
a city-by-city and county-by-county basis. To the extent we decide in the future to install our own fiber optic transmission facilities,
we will need to obtain rights-of-way over private and publicly owned land and pole attachment authorizations . Tbere can be no
assurance that such rights-of-way or authorizations will be available to us on economically reasonable or advantageous terms. We
could also be subject to unexpected franchise requirements and be required to pay license or franchise fees based on a percentage of
gross revenues or some other formula.

Employees

As ofDecember 31, 2004, we had 373 employees.We believe that our future success will depend on our continued ability to
attract and retain highly skilled and qualified employees. None ofour employees are currently represented by a collective bargaining
agreement. We also believe that we enjoy good relationships with our employees. As a result ofthe recent sale of our enterprise
customer base to TelePacific, as ofMarch 14, 2005 our employee base was reduced to approximately 250 employees. The reduction in
force was due to terminations ofour employees primarily responsible for enterprise customers.

Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form l0-K, Quarterly Reports on Foam 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to reports
filed pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free ofcharge on our
Investor Relations web site at www.pacwestcom as soon as
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STATE OF

CITY OF

I, John Sumpter, hereby state that I am Vice President of Regulatory of Pac-West Telecomm,
Inc., the Applicant in the foregoing Application ; that I am authorized to make this Verification
on behalf of Pac-West Telecomm, Inc . ; that the foregoing Application was prepared under my
direction and supervision ; and that the statements in the foregoing Application are true and
correct to the best ofmy knowledge, information, and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me, Nancy Wong Griffin, Notary Public, on this
day of September, 2005 by John Sumpter, personally known tome or proved tome on the

basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person who appeared before me.

WITNESS my hand and official seal .

My Commission Expires : August 6, 2008

VERIFICATION

Name: John Sumpter
Title : Vice President of Regulatory
Pac-West Xlecomm, Inc.

Missouri

CALIFORNIA §

SAN JOAQUIN §




